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NOTICE OF MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Forty Six Annual General Meeting of the members of Triochem Products Limited
(CIN:1.24249MH1972PLCO15544) will be held at the Registered Office of the Company at Sambava Chambers, 4%

Floor, Sir P. M. Road, Mumbai - 400001 on Saturday, 25 August, 2018 at 3,00 P.M. to transact the following

business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 March,
2018 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors' thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Grace R. Deora (DIN 00312080), who retires by rotation and is
eligible for re-appointment.

3. Ratification of appointment of Auditors
To consider and, if though fit, 1o pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of Section 139 and other applicable provision, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("Act’) read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended from
time to time, the Company hereby ratified the appointment of M's Kanu Doshi Associates LLP, Chartered
Accountants, Mumbai (ICAl Firm Registration No. 104746W/W10009G) as Auditors of the Company to
hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 47" Annual General
Meeting to be held 1 2019 1o examine and audit the accounts of the Company for the financial year 2018
- 2019 at such remuneration to be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company, based on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, mutually agreed to between the Company and Auditors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. Ratification of Remuneration payable to cost auditor

To consider and if though fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
ORDINARY RESOLUTION
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of Section 148 and other applicable provision, if any, of the

Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to

time (including any statutory modification(s) or re-cnuctment thereof, for the time being in force), Mis. N

itesh & Associates, Cost Accountants (the Cost Auditors appointed by the Board of Directors of the
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Company, to conduct the audit of cost records of the Company for the financial year ending March 31,
2019, on a remuneration of Rs. 50,000/ (Rupees Fifty Thousand) plus Goods and Service Tax (GST) as
applicable, be and is hereby ratified.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all
acts and take all such steps as may be necessary proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution’
Authorization for Related Party Transaction

To consider and if though [it, 1o pass with or without modification, the following Resolution as a SPECIAL
RESOLUTION

“RESOLVED THAT in continuation of and in addition 1o the Resolution passed through Special resolution
in Annual General Meeting held on 26 August, 2017 and pursuant to the Section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Meeting of Board & its Powers) Rules, 2014 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Act, and such other approvals, sanctions, consents and permissions as may be
deemed necessary consent be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company or any
Committee thereof, to enter into contracts | agreements as defined in the Companies Act, 2013 with the

related parties up to maximum per annum amounts with effect from April 1, 2018, as appended herein

below .
"Name of Related Parties /| Transaction defined u’s 188(1) of Companies Act, 2015
Companies | (Rs. In Crores) |
| Name of Related Parties Sale of any goods and | Purchase of any | E Payment of Expenses I
Companies materials goods and matenals | and Reimbursement Paid

| On Actual basis, Exempted being in the ordinary course of business and on arm's length basis.

(Subject to a maximum of amount p.a. as mentioned against the name of the company)

G Amphray Pharmaceuticals | 15 20 a

Pvi Lid

Triochem Laboratorics Pyt | 15 [ 20

Ltel

" Ambernath Plasto Packn].;'mg” .
Pyt Ld
' PROPRIETORSHIP FIRM
"G Amphray Laboratories 60 T s 10

S e ——— —]

| have some interest as per the provisions of section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013

' Mrs Grace R. Deora
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| Mr. Rajesh R. Deora . [ _

| Mr. Rajiv R. Deora - I
' Ramu M Deora HUF |'_ —_— R -
Ramu S Deora HUF . l_ | -

Any Contract or transaction with all the above parties for selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying,

property of any kind to be on market value and on arm lengths relationship basis only.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or any Committee thereof, be and are

hereby authorized to exccute the documents, deeds or writings required to be executed in relation to the

and other incidental documents, make applications to regulatory and governmental authorities for the

purposes of obtaining all approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions required by the Company and to
» do all acts and deeds to give effect to this resolution.”

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the business
to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting (AGM), as set out under item no. 4 and $ above and the
relevant details of the Directors seeking re-appointment under item no. 3 above as required by Kegulation
26(4) and 306(3) of the Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Listung Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations) and as required under Secretarial Standards - 2 on
General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India is annexed thereto.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (THE "MEETING")
IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF /
HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. The proxy form, in order to

b

be effective, must be duly completed and deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than
48 (forty-eight) hour before the commencement of the Meeting Proxies submitted on behalf of
companies, socicties, partnership firms, ete. must be supported by appropnate resolution | authonity, as
applicable, issued on behalf of the nominating organization
Members are requested to note that, Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act,
2013, a person can act as a proxy on behall of members not exceeding (50) fifty and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A
member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights
may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
sharcholder. A Proxy-holder shall prove his identity at the ume of attending the Meeting.

Jorporate members intending to send their authorized representative to attend the Annual General

Mceting pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested 1o send, a certified copy of
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9.
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11.
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relevant Board Resolution together with the respective specimen signature(s) of those representative(s)
authorized under the said resolution to attend and vote on their behalf at the Annual General Meeting,

A route map showing direction to reach the venue of the 46™ Annual General Meeting is given along with
this annual Report as per the requirement of the Secretarial Standards - 2 on General Meetings.

Members proxies attending the Mecting should bring the Atiendance Slip, duly filled, for handing over at
the venue of the meeting.

During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting and
until the conclusion of the meeting, a member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at any time
duning the business hours of the Company, provided that not less than three days ol notice in writing is
given to the company.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under Section
170 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and The Register of Contracts or Arrangements, in which
Directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act, will be available for inspection by the
members at the Annual General Meeting.

Members are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report with them at the Annual General
Meeting, as the copies of the report will not be cireulated at the meeting.

The register of members and the share transfer registers of the Company will remain closed from 18*
August, 2018 1o 25" August, 2018 (both days inclusive).

The Members secking any tnformation with regard to accounts are requested to write to the Company at
an early date 1o enable the Management to keep the information ready.

Explanatory statements pursuant to section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the Special
Business to be transacted at the meeting under item No. 3, 4 and 5 is Annexed hereto.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to advice immediately change in their address, if
any, quoting their folio number(s) to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company. Members
holding shires in the electronic form are requested to advice immediately change in their address, if any,
quoting their Client [D No., 1o their respective Depository Participants,

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who 1s higher in the order of name
will be entitled 1o vote,

Members desirous of getung any information in respect of accounts of the Company and proposed
resolution, are requested to send their queries in writing 1o the Company at its registered office at least 7

days before the date of the meeting, so that the required information can be made available w the

meeling
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The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account
Number (PAN) by every participant in securitics market. Members holding shares in electronic form are,
therelore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining
their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the Company/
Registrar Ms. Sharex Dynamic (India) Pvi. Lid., Unit-1, Luthra Industrial Premises. Safed Pool, Andheri
Kurla Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai: 400072, Phone: 022 28515606, Fax: 0022 28512885 E-mail:

sharexindialee vsnl.com

Members are hereby informed that Dividend which remain unclaimed unpaid over a period of 7 years
from the date of transfer 1o the Unpaid Dividend Account have been transferred by the Company,
pursuant to section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, to a fund called the Investor Education & Protection
Fund (IEPF)Please note that no claim shall lie against the Fund or the Company in respect of the dividend

amount so ransferred w the Investor Education & Protection Fund.

. Members may avail demateriahization facility by opening Demat Accounts with the Depository Participants

of wither Natonal Securities Depository Limited or Central Depository Services (India) Limited and get

the equity share certificate held by them dematenalized. The ISIN No. of the Company is INE331E01013

. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holding in

dematerialized form to eliminate risks associated with physical shares and for ease in portfoho
management. Members can contact the Company's Share Registrars and Transfer Agents for assistance in

this regards.

. Nomination Facility.

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, facility for making nomination is available
for the Members in respect of the shares held by them, Members holding shares in single name and who
have not vet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. 5H-
13. If a member desire to cancel the earlier nomination and record fresh nomination, he may submit the
same in Form No. SH-14. Both Forms are appended at the ended of the Annual Report. Members holding
shares in physical form are requested to submit the forms to the Company’s Share Registrars and Transfer
Agents. Members holding shares in electronic form may obtain form from their respective Depository
Participant

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("Ministry”), Government of India, has taken a “Green Initiative in
Corporate Governance” by allowing paperless compliances by companies through electronic mode. As
per the Circular No. 172011, dated 21.04.2011 and Circular No. 182011, dated 29.04.2011 issued by the

Mipustry of Corporate Affairs, companies can now send various notice/documents (including notice calling
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2.

Annual General Meeting, Audited Financial Statements, Directors Report, Auditors Report, ete,) to their
sharcholders through electronic mode, 1o the registered email address of the sharcholders

Members may also note that an clectronic copy of the 46" Annual Report including Notice along with
atendance  slip and  proxy form  will be available on the Company's website at

www. ttiochemproducts com Even after registering for e-communication, Members are entitled to receive

such communication in physical form, upon making such a request for the same free of cost For any

communication, the sharcholders may also send their request 1o the Company's investor E-mail Id;

investor{tt triochemproducts com

Members, who have not registered their e-mail addresses, are requested to regstered their e-mail address
in respect of electronic holdings with the depository through their concerned Depository Participants and
members who hold shares in physical furm are requested to send their details to Mis. Sharex Dynamic
(India) Pvt. Lid. (Registrar and Transfer agent), Unit-1, Luthra Industrial Premises, Safed Pool, Andheri
Kurla Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai: 400072, Phone: 022 28515606, Fax: 022 28512885 E-mail:

sharexsindia(@vsnl com in order to enable the company to serve the notice/Documents including Annual

Report through e-mail as an initiative in consonance with circular issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
allowing paperless compliances by the companies.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to offer the facility of voting through clectronic
means, as an alternate, to all its Members to enable them to cast their votes electronically instead of
casting their vote at the Meeting.

Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the Company is pleased to provide its
members the facility of ‘remote e-voting (e-voting from a place other than venue of the Annual General
Meeting) to exercise their right to vote at the 46" Annual General Meeting The business may be
transacted through e-voting services rendered by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

The facility for voung, either through electronic voting system or through ballovpolling paper shall also
be made available at the venue of the 46® Annual General Meeting, The members attending the meeting,
who have not already cast their vote through remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their voting rights
the meeting. The members who have already cast their vote through remote e-voling may atiend the

meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again at the Annual General Meeting,

23. The procedure and Instructions for the voting through electronic means is as follows

1 The Remote e-voling period begins on 22° August, 2018 at 09:00 a.m. and will end on 24% August,



physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 17" August, 2018, may cast their vote
electronically, The e~voling module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting after 5.00 pm. on 24"
August, 2018

Members holding shares in physical or in demat form as on 17" August, 2018 shall only be eligible for
e-voling.

Sharcholders who have already voted prior to the meeung date would not be entitled to vote at the
meeting venue.

The sharcholders should log on 10 the ¢voting website www evotingindia.com.

Click on “Sharcholders”

Now Enter your User 1D

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,

b. For NSDL: B Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the
Company

Next enter the Image Verification as displaved and Click on Login.

If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to wew.evotingindia com and voted on
an carlier voting ol any company, then your existing password is to be used.

If vou are a first ime user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Ph}'&!ﬂ-l] Form
[PAN [ Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department
‘ | (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)
s  Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository
Participant are requested to use the first two letters of their name and the last 8 |
digits of the demat accountfolio number in the PAN field
| & In case the [olio number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of (s
before the number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters.
Eg If your name is Ramesh Kumar with folio number 100 then enter

| RAOC000100 in the PAN field.

‘ Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd mmaﬁ-y format) as
Hank Details | recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login
OR e |l both the details are not recorded with the depository ar company please enter |

Date of Birth the member id  folio number in the Dividend Bank ficld as mentioned in |

DOB) instruction (d).




After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT™ tab.

Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation’ menu wherein
they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note
that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other
company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL
platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant <TRIDQCHEM FRODUCTS LIMITED > on which you choose to
vole,

On the voting page, vou will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option
“YESNO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired, The option YES implies that you assent
to the Resolution and option NO implies that vou dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details

After selecting the resolution vou have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation box
will be displayed, If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK", else to change your vote, click on
"CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote,

Once vou "CONFIRM" vour vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

You can also take out print of the voting done by you by dlicking on "Click here to print” option on
the Voting page

Il Demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then Enter the User 1D and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.
Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app m-Voting available for android based
mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. iPhone and Windows phone
users can download app from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively on or after
30% June. 2018 Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mohile app while voting on vour
mobile.

Note for Non - Individual Sharcholders and Custodians.

s Non-ndmwdual sharcholders (ie. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI ete.) and Custodian are




e They should submit a scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the

entity to helpdesk evoling(@ cdslindia com

e After receiving the login details a compliance user should be created using the admin login and
password. The Compliance user would be able o link the account(s) for which they wish to vote
on

e The list of accounts linked in the login should be emailed 1o helpdesk evoting(iz cdslindia.com
and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

s A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in
favour of the Custodian. if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the
scrutinizer to verify the same

u. In case you hawe any queries or issue regarding c-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked

Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting manual available at www evotingindia com under help section or

write an email 1o helpdesk.evoting(@ edslindia.com,

In case of members receiving the physical copy:

4. Please follow all steps from sl. no. (a) to sl. no. (s) above 1o cast vote.

b. The voting period begins on 22* August, 2018 at 09:00 a.m. and will end on 24* August, 2018 at
05:00 p.m. During this period shareholders” of the Company, holding shares cither in physical
form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 17" August, 2018, may cast their vote
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voung thereafter.

¢. In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked

Questions ("FAQs") and e-voling manual available at www.evotingindia com under help section

or wrile an email 1o helpdesk.evoting@ cdslindia.com.

24. The voung right of sharcholders shall be in proportion to their share of the paid up equity share capital of
the Company

25, E-voting period will commence from 22™ August, 2018 at 09:00 2m. and will end on 247 August, 2018 at
(5:00 p.m

26. Mrs. Ragini Chokshi, Practicing Company Secretary (C.P. No. 1430) has been appointed by the Board of
Director of the Company as Scrutinizer for scrutinize the remote c-voling process as well as voling
through Poll paper at the Meeting, in a fair and transparent manner

27. The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding 48 working hours {rom the conclusion of the e-voting
petiod unblock the votes in presence of an least two (2) witness not in the employment of the Company

and make a Scrutinizer's Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if any forthwith to the Chairman of

Ll




28. The Results shall be declared on or after the date of Annual General Meeting of the Company, The Results
declared along with the Scrutinizers Report shall be placed on the Company's website and on the website
of CDSL within two (2) days of passing of the resolutions at the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board of Directors
For Tricchem Products Limited
e

WW[W .:.\-'_,....._-——d—" -

Mahabirprasad 5. Deora Ramu S. Deora
Director Director & CEO
DIN: 01073326 DIN: 00312369

Place: Mumbai

Dated: 29" May, 2018

Registered Office:

4" Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai: 400 001
CIN: L24249MH1972PLCO15544

Email: investor(@ triochemproducts.com,

Website: www triochemproducts.com

Phone No.: 91 22 22663150

Fax No.: 91 22 22024057
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Annexure 1o Notice
PROFILE OF DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE ENSUING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Additional information, pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosurc
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and Secretarial Standard 2 in respeet of the Dircetors seeking appointment |/ re-

appointment at the Annual General Meeting is furnished below:

L.mu Of Director Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora
Director Identification Number | ﬂhﬁj_ihﬂﬂ B - -

Dcmgnaliun ‘ Non-Executive Director

| Age - | 70 Years

Iaiulll'iunl!ﬂn ' BA N

| Expertise Her knowledge of “the business environment and vast
experience in general management has been am assets to the
Lumpam

Date of first appointment in the current 30" March, 2015 '

designation

Shareholding in the Company as on 31" March, | 36,000 a

2018 ‘

Directorships and Committee memberships ‘ Nil
held in other companies as on 31* March, 2018

_ [L:U:.Iudmg Private Companies) | ) - ‘
Inter-se relationships between Directors and Mr. Ramu 8. Deora (DIN 00312369) (Husband)

Kt‘}f Ma_mgcml Personnel

No. of Board ‘vlul.lnga attended during the 4 of4
financial year 2017 - 18 |
Terms and conditions of re-appointment As per the resolution passed by the Shareholders of the ‘

| Company on the 43 Annual General Meeting held on 28"

|
August, 2015, Mrs Grace R. Deora has been appointed as a

| 'mn Executive Directors, liable to retire by mm[mn

Details of proposed remuneration Nil

The Board of Directors proposed the mﬁppuinunm. Grace R. Deora as Non-Executive Directors on the
Board of Directors of the Company and recommends the resolution as set out at ltem no. 2 of the Notice for the
approval of the embers at the ensuing Annual General Meeting

Except Mrs. Grace R, Deora, Mr, Ramu 5. Deora and Mr, Mahabirprasad S. Deora and their relatives, no other
Dircetor or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives ure concerned or interested in the sre-

appointment of Mrs. Grace R Deora as a Non-Executive Director of the Company, expect to extent of their

shareholdikg, if any. In the Company
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Annexure to Notice
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:
Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the act'), the following Explanatory Statement sets out all

material facts relating to the Business mentioned under ltem no. 3, 4 and 5 of the accompanying Notice dated 29"

May, 2018,

Item No.3:

This explanatory statement is provided through strictly not require as per Section 102 of the Act.

M's Kanu Deshi Associates LLP ICAI Firm Registration No. 104746W/W100096), Chartered Accountants, Mumbai
were appointed as the statutory auditors of the Company for a peniod from five vears at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company held on 26® August, 2017 to hold office from the conclusion of Forty Five till the
conclusion of Fifty Annual General Meeting to be held in 2022,

As per the provision of Section 139(1) of the Act, their appointment for the above tenure is subject to ratification
by members at every Annual General Meetng.

Accordingly, ratification of the members is being sought for appointment of statutory auditors as per the proposal
contained in the Resolution set out at item no. 3 of the notice.

The Board commends the Ordinary Resolution at item no. 3 for approval by the members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) or relatives of Directors and KMPs is concerned or

interested in the resolution set out at item no. 3 of the accompanying notice.

Item No.4:

The Company is directed, under Section 148 of the Act, read with The Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules,
2014 ('the Rules’), to have the audit of its cost records conducted by a cost accountant in practice.

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment and remuneration of
Mis. N Ritesh & Associates, Cost Accountants (Ritesh N. T. Proprictors), as the Cost Auditors of the Company to
conduct Cost Audits of the Company for the vear ending 31% March. 2019, at a remuneration of Rupees Fifty
Thousand plus applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses,

M's N Ritesh & Associates have submitted a centificate regarding their eligibility for appointment as Cost Auditors
of the Company. The said certificate will be available for inspection at the registered office of the Company during
1100 AM to 1.00 PM and shall also available at the meeting. M/s. N. Ritesh & Associates have vast experience in
the field of cost audit and have conducted the audit of the cost records of the Company for the past several years.

In accordance with the provision of Section 148 of the Act read with the Rules, the remuneration payable to the

Cost ﬁuw to be ratificd by the Sharcholders of the Company.




The Board commends the remuneration of Rs, Fifty Thousand plus an applicable tax to M/s. N, Ritesh & Associates
as the Cost Auditors and the approval of the Shareholders is sought for the same by an Ordinary Resolution.
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) or relative of Directors and KMPs is concerned or

interested in the Resolution set out at ltem No. 4 of the accompanying notice.

ltem No. 5:
Pursuant to Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”), read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of

Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 the Company is required to obtain consent of the Board and prior approval of
the members by Special Kesolution in case certun Related Party Transactions exceed such sum as is specified in
the Rules, The aforesaid provisions are not applicable in respect transactions entered into by the Company in the
ordinary course of business on arm's length basis. Though the Company always does the business with its related
parties at arm length and in ordinary course of business but there may be some transactions done in the interest
of the Company and for which vour approval is required under the provisions of the Act.
The proposal outhined above is in the interest of the Company and the Board recommends the resolution setting
out in accompanying Notice as Special Resolution
Nene of the Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company is concerned or interested in the said
resolution expect to extent of their sharcholding in the company or any other interest as Director or shareholder
or partner or otherwise in such related party entity, if any.
The Board recommends this Resolution for your Approval.

By order of the Board of Directors

For Triechem Produocts Limited

Mtafm A b o e

Mahabirprasad 5. Deora Ramu S. Deora
Dircctor Director & CEO
DIN: 01073326 DIN: 00312369

Place: Mumbai

Dated: 29" May, 2018

Registered Office:

4" Floor, Sambava Chambers,

Sir P M. Road, Fort, Mumbai: 400 001
CIN: L24249MH1972PLCO15544

Email: invtstor(@ tricchemproducts. com; Website: www.triochemproducts.com
—_
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

MANUFACTURERS OF ETHICAL PHARMACEUTICAL PRODUCTS

Rega Office | 41h Ficor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001
Tel, 0081 (22) 4082 8100 | Fax . 00 81 (22) 4082 8181 | E-mall - info@amphray.com
Corporale Identity Number | L24249MH1972PLC015544

BOARD'S REPORT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors are pleased to present the 46"Annual Report of the Company for the year ended 31" March,

2018
FINANCIAL RESULTS
The Company's financial performance for the year ended 31% March, 2018 i summarized below
{Rs. In Lakh)
Year ended | Year ended | Growth {'%J_
31.03.2018 | 31,03.2017
| Revenue from Up?.ﬂmn" . *n 499.05 | 1,806.19 *H T3%
Farnings Before Interest, Taxes, [}cpmd:mon and Amortization | 42013 | 11462 | 366.54% |
Less: Finance Cost - 3848 6.25 |
Less: Depreciation and Amortization Expense 24.73 2766 |
Profit for the period before share of profit in associate 35697 80.73 142.18%
Share of profit of Associate o - |l [ B — -
' Profit Before Tax | 35697 8073 | dd218% ‘
Less: Tax Expense 101.47 2313 - |
Profit for the period from continuing operations 35550 | 5760 143.58% |
'\ Profit before tax from discounted operations i 1T - | - |
| Tax expense of discontinued operations
Profit for the period from discontinued d operations . - -
' Profit for the period C | 550 | sTen [ 443sew ‘
Other C ﬂmprch::nmf Income (net of tax) — (0.28) 0.47 - ‘
Total Comprehensive Income ] (0.28) 047 |
| Opening balance in Retained Earnings - 345.26 287.60
Closing balance in Retained Earnings o | 600.48 _I_ 345.26

** Figures for Revenue from Operation are comparable numbers i.¢. Excise Duty has been removed as same does

not form pant of Revenue post G5T implementation

AMOUNT CARRIED FORWARD TO RESERVES

Your Company has not transferred any amount to its reserves.
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The Dividend Distribution Policy of the Company is set out as “Annexure A" and the same is POSTED on the

Company's website at following the link: http://www.triochemproducts.com/investor-relations/investor-

relations.aspx.

D PROTECTIO

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION
Your Company did not have any funds lving unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven vears. Therefore there were

no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (1EPF).

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on March 31, 2018 was Rs 2425 Lacs: During the year under review the
company has not issued any shares or any convertible instruments. The Company has not issued shares with
differential voting rights. It has neither issued employee stock options nor sweat equity shares and does not have

any scheme to fund its employee to purchase the shares of the Company.

DEMATERIALIZATION
Your Company has ticd up with National Securities Depository [td. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services

(India) Ltd. (CDSL) to enable the shareholders to trade and hold share in an electronic | dematenalized form. The

shareholders’ are advised 1o 1ake benefits of dematerialization,

COMPANY'S PERFOMACE REVIEW

During the financial year 2017-18, revenue from operation increased to Rs.3,499.05 lakh as against Rs.1,806.19
lakh in previous year - a growth of 193.74%. Cost of goods sold as a percentage to revenue from operation
decreased to 82.25% as against 84.02% in the previous year. Employee cost as 4 percentage to revenue from
operations decreased 1o 2.09% as against 3.75% in the previous year. Other expense as a percentage 1o revenue
from operations decreased to 4.82% as against 6.77% in the previous year. The profit after tax for the current year
is R5.255.50 lakhs against Rs.57.60 lakhs in the previous year

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which have

occurred between the end of the financial vear 2017-18 and the date of this report. There has been no change in

the nature of business of the Company

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As per Regulation 33 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as “Listing Regulations”) and applicable provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder, the Financial Statements of the Company for the

cial %‘\EEJI?-IB have been prepared in compliance with applicable Accounting Standards and on the basis
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of audited financial statements of the Company, its subsidiaries and associate companies, as approved by the
respective Board of Directors.

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") which is applicable w.e.l 1st April 2017 and
accordingly these financial results have been prepared in accordance with recognition and measurement
principles laid down in the Ind AS 34. Interim Financial Reporting prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
Financial results for the comparative period have also been presented in accordance with the recognition and
measurement principles of Ind AS 34, The date of transition to Ind AS is Ist April, 2016. The Impact of transition
has been accounted for in opening reserves: The Financial Statements together with the Auditors’ Report form

part of this Annual Report,

CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There were no changes in the nature of business during the vear ended 317 March, 2018.

OUTLOOK 2018-2019

Bulk drugs are basically raw materials that are used to prepare ultra-grade medicines in India. The Drug Price
Control is a big hindrance to the growth of the Industry. Due to a lack of price control on raw materials (which go
into the manufacturing of Bulk Drug), the price of most of Bulk Drug cannot be fixed. The prices of most raw
materials / chemicals fluctuate on daily basis cffecting the costing of Bulk Drugs.

For most Bulk Drugs there is heavy competition internally as well as from external sources. [n 90% of the cases,
prices of the bulk drugs are at their bare minimum level and hence the control of prices under DPCO has no
relevance. Therefore, there is urgent need of pharmaceuticals policy that could trigger bulk drugs manufacturing
and investments.

Bulk drugs are used along medicines or drugs to give it stable therapeutic effect. The industry can achieve newer
heights and better performance in the future provided cenain hurdles which stunted its growth in the past are
removed. The government needs to adopt 4 more pragmatic policy to remove impediments, clear certain

anomalics, rationalize the duty structure and reduce unnecessary bureaucratic controls to help the industry

achieve export targets.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

All pharmaceuticals companies are not integrated with a separate unit for formulation of active drug ingredients.

This has led to an increase in outsourcing of these molecules from the manufacturing sites. Outsourcing also
eliminates the need of investing expensive manulacturing processes. Due (o increasing demand for rapid-acting &

efficient drugs and introduction of innovative drug manufacturing facilities are drives estimated to fuel growth in
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iodine derivative market, your company's tumover is increase in comparison to performance of previous vear.
This year has benefited from change in foreign currency.

The market is expected to stable during the mid of year 2018-19, with the expectation of an improvement in the
market conditions during the year, the Company will endeavor to perform better than last year.

As regards to infrastructure, Your Company's head office and factory are adequately equipped to provide complete
support to the customer. Internal control systems have been well established and cost consciousness in factory
operation will lead to improved profitability in the long run. Your Directors are confident that the company will

improve the performance in the current year

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATES COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR

The Company has no subsidiaries, joint ventures or associated companies therefore disclosures in this regards are

not provided in this report.

PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE COMPANY UNDER SECTION 186 WITH DETAILS

The company has not given any loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of section 186 of the Companies

Act, 2013,

IXED DEPOSIT
The Company has not accepted any public deposit during the financial period under review falling within the

purview of 73 of Companies Act, 2013

CREDIT FACILITIES

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the support from Company's bankers namely State

Bank of India.

INSURANCE

All insurable assets of the Company including inventories, warchouse premises, ete, are adequately insured,

AWARDS
Your Company has not received any Award during the financial 2017-2018.

SIGNIFICANCE AND MATERIAL ORDER PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

There were no significance and material orders passed by regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and company operations in future. There were no material changes and commitments affecting the

financial position of the company occurring between March 31, 2018 and the date of this Report of the Dircctors.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All contract / arrangements / transaction entered by the Company with Related Parties were in ordinary course of
business and at arm's length basis

Pursuant to the provision of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 23 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, all Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for approval. Prior omnibus
approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions which are repetitive in nature. A statement of all
Related Party Transactions is placed before the Audit Committee for its review on a quarterly basis, specilying the
nature, value and terms and conditions of the transaction. The Company has adopted a Related Party Transaction
Policy, The Policy, as approved by the Board, is uploaded on the Company's website.

There are no matenially significant related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which have a potential conflict with the interest of the
Company at large,

The details of the related party transactions as per Indian Accounting Standares (IND AS)-24 are set out in Notes
to Financial Statements of the Company. Form AOC-2 pursuant 1o Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013

read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is set out in the "Annexure B" to this report

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate system of internal control to safeguard and protect from loss, unauthorized use or
disposition of its assets. All the transactions are probably authonized, recorded and reported to the Management.
The Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly maintaining the books of accounts
and reporting linancial statements. The internal auditor of the company checks and verifies the internal control
and monitors them in accordance with policy adopted by the company. The company continues 1o ensure proper
and adequate systems and procedures commensurate with its size and nature of its business

As require by the Companies Act 2013, your Company has implemented an Internal Financial Control (IFC)
Framework, Section 134(5)(¢) requires the Directors to make an assertion in the Directors Responsibility
Statement that your Company has laid down internal financial controls, which are in existence, adequate and
operate effectively. Under Section 177(4)(vii), the Audit Committee evaluates the internal financial controls and
makes a representation to the Board, The purpose of the IFC is to ensure that policies and procedures adopted by
vour Company for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business are implemented, including policies
for and the safeguarding its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of
accounting records, and timely preparation of reliable financial information. The IFC implementation required all

processes of your Company to be documented alongside the controls within the process. All processes were

satisfactprily tested for both design and effectiveness during the year.
o 1%
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The TPL code of conduct and accompanying training, seeks to ensure everyone in your Company understands
how 1o put values into practice. Mandatory training on the Code of Conduct helps your Company's employees
gain the confidence to make the right decisions and become familiar with the policies and procedures applicable
to their areas of operation, avoid conflicts of interest and report all unethical and illegal conduct.

Additionally, emplovees are required to certify in an annual basis whether there have been any transactions which
are fraudulent, illegal or violate of the Code of Conduct. Strong oversight and self-monitoring policies and
procedures demonstrate your Company's commitment to the highest standards of integrity.

Your Company has also successfully complemented its Internal Control Framework with the test of design and
effectiveness of all its processes across the organization as part of meeting the requirements of the Companies Act,

2013, 1o ensure the existence and effectiveness of Internal Financial Controls.

DIRECTORS AND KEY AGERIAL PERSONNEI

Composition of the Board:

The Company s policy is 1o have an appropriate blend of non-executive and independent directors, 1o maintain
the independence of the Board functions of governance and management

The composition of the Board of Directors is fully complied with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations, including the appointment of requisite number of Independent Directors
and Woman Director. As on 31 March 2018, the Board comprised of two (2) Non-Executive Independent Directors
and four (4) Non-executive Non-Independent Directors. Woman Director is a Non-executive Non-Independent
Directors. The Board has no institutional director

Retirement by rotation and subsequent re-appointment:

In accordance with the provision of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013, read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-cnaciment(s) thercof for the time being in force) and the Articles of Association of the
Company. Mrs. Grace R. Deora (Non-Executive Directer) liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM and being
eligible have offered themselves for re-appointment. In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder, the Listing Regulations and the Articles of Association of the
Company, the Independent Directors and the Managing Director of the Company are not liable to retire by
rotation.

Independent Directors with materially significant, pecuniary or business relationship with the Company:

There is no pecuniary or business relationship between the Non-Executive/Independent Directors and the

Company. A declaration to this effect if also submitted by all the Directors at the beginning of cach financial year.

Independent Direclors:
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The independent Directors of the Company have been appointed for tenure of 5 (five) years up to 29" March,
2020. The Company has on its Board, eminent Independent Directors who have brought in independent
judgement to Board's deliberations including issued of strategy, risk management and overall governance. They
have played a pivotal role in safeguarding the interests of all stakeholders,

The Independent Directors have submitted declarations that they meet the criteria of Independence laid down
under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations and have confirmed that they do not hold directorship
more than the prescribed limit in the Listing Regulations. The Company has also issued formal appointment letters
to all the Independent Directors in the manner provided under the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules
issued thereunder.

The terms and conditions for appointment of independent director and a sample letter of appointment issued to

the, are posted on the Company's website at following the link: hup:/ triochemproducts cominvestor-

relations/investor-relations. aspxrvear=2015-16

Declaration of Independence from Independent Directors:

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors confirming that they meet the criteria

on independence as prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Schedule and
Rules issued hereunder as well as Regulation 16 of Listing Regulations (including any statutory modification(s) or
re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in foree).

Details of Key Managerial Personnel:

The designated as Key Managenial Personnel of the Company in compliance with provisions of Section 203 of the

Companies Act, 2013 and Regulations 6(1) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, are Mr. Ramu §. Deora - Chief Executive Officer; Mr. Puran | Parmar
- Chief Financial Officer; Resignation of Mr. Sandeep Patel from the post of Company Secretary & Compliance
Officer of the Company w.e.f. 14® February, 2018, The Board has appointed Mr. Bharat B. Gangani as Company
Secretary & Compliance Officer we f 15" February, 2018 and designated him as Kev Managerial Personnel, except
forguing there has been no charge in the role & position of KMF of the Company during the year

Remuneration of directors, key managerial personnel and particulars of employees:

The remuneration paid to the Directors 1s in accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration policy

formulated in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the listing
Regulations (including any statutory modifications(s) or re-enactments(s) thereof for the time being in Force). The
information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-cnactment(s)

thereof Efw time being in force) in respect of Directorsiemployee of the Company is as follows:



The company director has forgone remuneration. Further no sitting fee has been paid to any direcior during the
financial year, The particulars of the emplovees who are covered by the provisions contained in Rule 5(2) and rule
5(3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are:

a) Employed throughout the vear Nil

b) Emploved for part of the vear Nil

The increase in remuneration of emplovees other than the Key Managenial Personnel is considerably in line with
the increase in remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel. It is affirmed that the remuneraton paid o the
Directors, Kev Management Personnel and senior management is as per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy
of the Company,

In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the reports and accounts are being sent to the members and others entitled
thereto, excluding the information on employees’ particulars which is available for inspection by the members at
the Registered office of the company during business hours on working days of the company up 1o the date of
ensuing Annual General Meeting. If any member is interested in inspecting the same, such member may write to
the Chief Financial Officer in advance.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy;

The Company has formulated and adopted the Nomination and Remuneration Policy in accordance with the
provisions of Companies Act. 2013 read with the Rules Issued thereunder and the Listing Regulations.

The said Policy of the Company, mer 4/, provides that the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall
formulate the critena for appointment if Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors on the Board of
Directors on the Board of Directors of the Company and persons in the Senior Management of the Company, their
remuneration including determination of qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and other
matters as provided under sub-section (3) of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory

modification(s) or re-cnactment(s) thereof for the tme being in force). The Policy is also available on the website

of the Company at following the link: hitp: triochemproducts com/uploads Investor-relations/pdis nomination-

and-remuneration-policy-26.pdf

Performance Evaluation:

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company empowers the Nomination and Remuncration
Committee to formulate a process for evaluating the performance of Directors, Committees of the Board and the
Board as a whole.

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulatior, the Directors carried out the annual
performance evaluation of the Board, Committees of Board and Individual Directors along with assessing the

quality, and quantity and timelines of flow of information between the Company management and the Board that
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is necessary for the Board 1o effectively and reasonably perform their duties. An evaluation sheet was given to each

director wherein certain criteria were set out for which ratings are to be given

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
In terms of arcular no.: CIRMEDVDSAS1 2015 dated 30.05.2013 and circular no.; CIR/CFD/POLICY CELLT 2004

dated 15.09.2014 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Regulation 15 of Sccurities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 shall not apply to listed
entities having paid up equity share capital not exceeding rupees ten crore and net worth not exceeding rupees
twenty five crore, as on the last day of the previous financial vear. In this connection, we wish to inform you that
in respect of our Company as on the last audited balance sheet as at 31.03.2018 paid up equity capital of the
company is Rs.24.50 lakh which is less than ten crores and net worth Rs.8.03 Crore which is less than rupees
twenty five crore. Hence, Regulation 15(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 not be applicable to us.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETING HELD
The Board of Directors duly meets four umes during the financial year from 1% April 2017 to 31" March 2018. The

dates on which the meetings were held are 26" May 17, 12® August 17, 13" December 17, and 14th February 18,

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS

Attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings held during the financial year ended 31* March 2018 and at last
AGM;

Name of Director Category | Number of meetings | Attendance at the last AGM
" (in alphabetical order) Held | Attended | Held on 26* August, 2017 |
" Mr. Girish Kumar Pungalia Non-Executive, Independent | 4 |4 1 Yes T
I Mrs. Grace R Deora Non-Executive I'4 4 [ Yes - _‘
|mrpr:mﬁ S Deora . Non-Executive l . 4 | Yes .
| Mr. Shyam Sunder Sharma  Non-Executive 14 2 I No .

" Mr. Sunil . Jhunjhunwala Non-Executive, Indeptngenl_' ' 4 Yes

| Mr. Ramu S. Deora Non-Executive i 3 | Yes
Attendance of Directors at the Committce Meetings held during the financial vear ended 31 March 2018,

Name of Director | Status .Ejategor}f | Audit i_!_ﬁicm.lal:i;and Stakcholders
(in alphabetical order) Committee Remuneration Relationship
| . Meeling ‘ Commitice Commitice
- ? _ Held | Attended | Held | Attended I Held I Attended ‘
Mr. Girish Kumar Member | Non-Executive, | 4 | 4 4 4 14 [4

| Independent

<5
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“Mr. MahabirprasadS. | Member | Non-Executive | 4 | 4

Deora il ) S

Mr. Shyam Sunder Member | Non-Exccutive 4 4 4 4 i |4

Sharma | ‘ | |

Mr Sunil § Chairman ~ Non-Executive, | 4 4 | 4 4 i 4
| Jhunjhunwala  Independent | il

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING

Schedule [V of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder and Regulation 25(3) of SEBI Listing
Regulation, 2015, the independent directors held their separate meeting on 30" March 2018, without attendance
of non-independent directors and members of Management, to inter alia:

All independent directors were present in meeting,

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Based on the frame work of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained by the

Company, work performed by the Internal, Statutory, Cost and Secretarial Auditors, including audit of the internal

financial controls over financial reporting by the Statutory Auditors, and the reviews performed by Management

and the relevant Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the

Company's internal financial controls were adequate and effective during the financial year 2017-2018,

Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the

best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period:

¢} the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Director have prepared the annual accounts on going concern basis;

¢) The Director have laid down internal controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and,

fy the Director have devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and

that such systems are adequate and operating effectively,




The composition of Audit Committee is in alignment with provision of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Rules issued thereunder and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. The members of the Audit
Committee are financially literate and have experience in financial management. The Audit Committee comprises

of the following directors:

_Nam: - Status _ Category
Mr Sunil 8, Jhunjhunwala B ' _Chuirm;ﬂx _F‘EF;cuuw: {ndr:pfndmt Director ]
' Mr. Girish Kumar Pungaha | Member | Non-Executive - Independent Director

M Shyam 5 Sharma - Member | Director -

H.II the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were acctplrﬁ by the Board of Directors of the Company.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The company is having 2 Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprising of the following directors:

Name - ' Status C-amgnn*
t Mr. Sunil S. jhumhur;;pﬂ - ﬁha:rman Non-Executive - Independent Director ]
| Mr. Girish Kumar r Pungalia - Member Non-Executive - Indépcndrnt Director

Mr. Shyam 8. Sharma ‘Member | Director o “

All the recommendations made by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were accepted by the Board of

Directors of the Company.

STAKEHOLDERS REIATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The company is having a Stakcholders Relationship Committee comprising of the following directors:

Name Status ' Category

Mr. Sunil 5. JThunjhunwala Chalrman Non-Executive - Inrlr.pr.ndu.nl Director _|

‘M. Girish Kumar Pungalia Member | Non- on-Executive - Independent Director |
F‘k{h’, Mahabirprasad Sitaram Deora Member ' Director |
HUMAN RESOURCES

The well-disciplined workforce which has served the company for four decades lies at the very foundation of the
company's major achievements and shall well continue for the vears to come. Maintenance of a cordial and
supportive environment is a pre-requisite for the smooth functioning ol any organization. This requires the
management and the employees to fully understand and respect each other. On an ongoing basis the management
identifies and implements necessary measures to maintain a positive climate and improve performance levels, The
management has always carried out systematic appraisal of performance and imparted training at penodic
intervals. The company has always recognized talent and has judiciously followed the principle of rewarding

performance.

N
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The Company continued the welfare activities for the employees, which include Medical Care, Group Insurance
and Canteen Facility. To enrich the skills of employees and enrich their experience, the Company arranges,

Practical Training Courses by Internal and External Faculty,

Your Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation for the dedication and commitment displayed by all

executives’ officers and staff at all levels of the company.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORK PLACE

As per requirements of the Sexual Harassment of women at the workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal)

Act, 2013 ("Act”) and rules made thereunder, vour Company has adopted a pelicy for prevention of sexual
harassment at workplace and has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee. During the year, your Company
has not received any complaints on Sexual Harassment under the said Act. Display on website of the Company at

fs;prevention-of-sexual-harasment-at-

following the link: hup:iriochemproducts. compuploads Investor-relations,

workpalce-policy-78. pdl

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT

Although the company has long been followed the principle of nisk minimization as is the norm in every industry,

it has now become a compulsion. Therefore, the Board members were informed about the risk assessment and
minimization procedures after which the Board [ormally adopted steps for framing, implementing and monitoring
the risk management plan for the company

The main objective of this policy is to ensure sustainable business growth with stability and to promaote a pro-
active approach in reporting, evaluating and resolving risks associated with the business. In order to achieve with
the key objectives, the policy establishes a structured and disciplined approach to Risk Management, in order to
guide decisions on risk related issues.

In today’s challenging and competitive environment, strategies for mitigating inherent risks in accomplishing the
growth plans of the Company are imperative. The common risks inter alia are: Regulations, competitive, Business
risk. Technology obsolescence, Investments, retention of talent and expansion of facilities.

Business risk, inter-alia, further includes financial risk, political risk, fidelity risk, legal nsk.

As a matter of policy, these risks are assessed and steps as appropriate are taken to mitigate the same. The Risk

Management Policy is posted in the Website of the Company.

RISK & MITIGATION

The Company has identified various risks faced by the Company from diflerent areas. As per the provision of the

Companies Act, 2013 and listing agreements, the Board has adopted a risk management policy whereby a proper




framework is set up. Appropriate structures are present so that risks are inherently monitored and controlled. A

combination of policies and procedures artempts to counter risk as and when they evolve

WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY

The Company maintains a website www.triochemproducts.com where detailed information of the company and

its products are provided.

CODE OF CONDUCT:
The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the Members of the Board and all

employees in the course of day to day business operations of the company. The Code has been display on website

of the Company at following the link http: www triochemproducts com uploads Investor-relations pdfs/directors--

senjor-management-personnel-24, pdf

The Code lays down the standard procedure of business conduct which is expected to be followed by the
Directors and the designated employees in their business dealings and in particular on matters relating to integrity
in the work place, in business practices and in dealing with stakcholders

All the Board Members and the Sentor Management personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code.

DISCLOSURE OF VARIOUS POLICIES:

The Board has approved various policies in their meeting so that the Committees work effectively and in
accordance with the provisions as stipulated in the Policies. Various policics as approved by the Board are posted
in the Website of the Company

Familiarization programmers for the Independent Directors:
In Compliance with the requirements of SEBI Regulations, your Company has put in place a familiarization

programmed for the Independent Directors to familiarize them with their role, rights and responsibilities as
Directors, the working of the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model,
ete. it is also display on website of the Company at following the link

http: 'www.triochemproducts.comfupluads Investor-relations/pdls lamiladzation-program-for-inde pendent-

directors-31.pdf

Risk Management Policy:
The Company has implemented Risk Management Policy and the Board of Dircctors has prepared a

comprehensive framework of risk management for assessment of risks and to determine the responses to these

risks 0 as to minimize their adverse impact on the organization. The policy as approved by the Board of Directors

is uploaded on the Company's website http: wew. triochemproducts com/uploads/1nvestor-relations pdfs/risk-

management-policy-25. pdf
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Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy:

In order to ensure that the activities of the company and its employees are conducted in a fair and transparent
manner by adoption of highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior the company
has adopted a vigil mechanism policy. The aim of the policy is to provide adequate safeguards against victimization
of whistle blower who avails of the mechanism and also provide direct access to the Chairman of the Audit
Commitlee, in appropriate or exceptional cases.

Accordingly, “Whistle Blower Policy’ has been formulated with a view to provide a mechanism for the Directors
and emplovees of the Company to approach the Ethics Counsellor or the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the
ompuny,

The purpose of this policy is o provide a framework to promote responsible and secure whistle blowing. It
protects employees willing (o raise a concern about serious irregularities within the Company. This policy is

uploaded on the Company's website. hitp:/www triochemproducts.com/uploads Investor-relations pdfs vigil-

mechanism-whistle-blower-policy-28.pdf

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS' REPORT

Statutory Auditors:

Mis. KANL DOSHI ASSOCIATE LLP (Firm Registration No. 104746W / W100096), Chartered Accountants, Mumbai
were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 45" AGM till the conclusion of the 50 AGM. M/s.
KANT DOSHI ASSOCIATE LLP, Chartered Accountants have confirmed their eligibility and qualification required
under Section 139, 141 and other applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules issued thercunder
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in foree)

The Auditors Report for the financial vear ended 31" March, 2018 on the financial statements of the Company is a
part of Annual Report. The Auditors Report for the financial vear ended 31" March, 2018 does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

The observation of the Auditors in their report read together with the Notes to Accounts are self-explanatory and
therefore, in the opinion of the Directors, do not call for any further explanation. The auditor's reports do not
contain any reservation, qualification & adverse remark lor the financial year under review.

Internal Auditors:

Ms, Haren Sanghvi & Associates, Chartered Accountants performs the duties of internal auditors of the company
and their report 1s reviewed by the audit committee from time to time.

Cost auditor:

The Board of Directors of the Company, on the recommendations made by the Audit Committee, has appointed

M:s N. Ritesh & Associates, Cost Accountants (Ritesh N, T, Proprietors) to conduct the cost audit of the Company




to conducts the audit of cost records for the financial year 2018-19. The remuneration proposed to be paid to the

Cost Auditors, subject to ratification by the sharcholders of the Company at the ensuing 46% Annual General

Meeting,
The Company has received consent from M/s N, Ritesh & Associates, Cost Accountants (Ritesh N. T. Proprictors),

to act as the Cost Auditors for conducting audit of the cost records for the financial year 2018-19 along with a
certificate confirming their independence and arm's length relationship.

Secretarial Auditors:

Pursuant to the provision of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s
Ragini Chokshi & Co.(CP No.: 1430, FCS: 2390), Company Secretaries to conduct and audit of the secretanal
records for the financial year 2018-19

The Company has received consent from Ms Ragini Chokshi & Co. (CP No. 1436, FCS: 2390), Company
Secretaries to act as the auditors for conducting audit of the Secretarial records for the financial year ended 31¢
March, 2019

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 317 March, 2018 is set out in “Annexure C" to this report.

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
Pursuant to the provision of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act. 2013 and Rule 12(1) of The Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Extract of the Annual Return of the Company as on as on 31

March 2018 in the prescribed Form No. MGT 9 is set out in "Annexure D" to this report.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS OF ICSI

The Company is in compliance of Secretarial Standards on Meeting of the Board of Directors (85-1) and General

Meetings (85-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The provisions of Companies Act, 2013 regarding Corporate Social Responsibility shall not be applicable 1o

companies having net worth not exceeding Rs, 500 crore or more or turnover not exceeding Rs. 1,000 crore or net
profit not exceeding Rs.$ crore or more during any financial year, as on the last day of the previous financial year,
In this connection, we wish 1o inform you that in respect of our Company as on the last audited balance sheet as
at 31.03.2018 neither the net worth exceeds Rs.500 crores or turnover exceeds Rs1 000 crore or net profit

exceeding Rs.3 crore Hence. the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 regarding Corporate Social Responsibility

would not be applicable
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ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information on conversation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo

stipulated under Section 134(3) M of the Act, and the Rules framed thereunder is annexed herewith “Annexure- E”

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

The information on Research and [qu:iupmtnl in Form B is annexed herewith as “Annexure E"

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS & CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS
In compliance with Accounting Standard AS-28 relating to “Impairment of Assets”, the company has reviewed the
carrving amount of its fixed assets as at the end of the year. Based on the strategic plans and such valuation of the

fixed assets of the company, on impairment of assets is envisaged at the balance sheet date.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The company has been very well supported from all quarters and therefore your directors wish to place on record

their sincere appreciation for the support and co-operation received from Employees, Dealers, Suppliers, Central,
and State Governments, bankers, and others associated with the Company
Your Directors wish to thanks the banks, financial institutions, shareholders and business associates for therr

continued support and cooperation.

We look forward to receiving the continued patronage from all quarters to become a better and stronger company.

CAUSIONARY STATEMENT

The statements contained in the Board's Report and Management Discussion and Analysis contain certain

statements relating to the future and therefore are forward looking within the meaning of applicable sccurities,
laws and regulations. Various factors such as economic conditions, changes in government regulations, tax,
regime, other statues, market forces and other associated and individual factors may however lead to variation in
actual results, Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on the forward looking statements

By order of the Board of Directors

For Triochem Products Limited

Mt—i..a-bn_-u-]vwﬂbl-l.m C‘)-—-—_—r— 3 r___________.--‘
Mahabirprasad S. Deora Ramu 5. Deora
Director Director & CEO
DIN: 01073326 DIN: 00312369

Place: Mumbui
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Annexure (A) to Board's Report

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY
(Approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 11* November, 2016)

INTRODUCTION

The Policy is called "TPL - Dividend Distribution Policy” (hereinafter referred to as “this Policy”) and shall be
effective from 11® November, 2016 (“Effective Date”)

In terms of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, including any statutory modifications(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force,

Triochem Products Limited (Hercinafter referred to as “the Company”) is required to frame this policy.

POLICY

This policy aims at ensuring compliance with the provisions of Regulations 434 of Securities and Exchange Board

of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, including any statutory

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force

The Company would, mer ali, consider the following financial parameters and/or internal & external factors

before declaning dividend(s) or recommending dividend(s) to the shareholders:

1. Current year profits arrived at after providing for depreciation in accordance with the provisions of Section
123 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued
thereunder: and/or

2. Profit from any of the previous financial vear(s) arrived art alter providing for depreciation in accordance with
the provisions of Section 123 and other applicable provision, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Rules issued thereunder;

3. Fund requirements to finance the working capital needs of the business;

4. Opportunities for investments of the funds of the Company to capture [uture growth in the industry, eg
capital expenditure, network expansion, etc.;

Funding requirements for any organic and inorganic growth opportunities o be pursued by the Company;

& AN

Optimal free cash to fund any exigencies, if any;

o |

Prevailing legal requirements, regulatory conditions or restrictions laid down under the applicable laws

including tax laws.
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In case the Board proposes not to distribute the Profit; the ground thereof and information on utilisation of the

retained earnings, if any, shall be disclosed to the sharcholders in the Board's Report forming part of Annual

Report of the Company.
The CFO jointly with the Directors & CEO of the Company shall suggest any amount to be declared /

recommended as Dividend to the Board of Directors of the Company, taking into account the aforementioned

parameters.

Parameters adopted w.r.L. various classes of shares:

1. The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares of the face value of Rs. 104 each,
forming part of its Issued, Subseribed and Paid - up share capital.

2. Dividend (including interim and/or final) would be declared and paid to equity sharcholders at the rate fixed
by the Board of Directors of the Company, if any, would be subject to the approval of the shareholders at the

ensuing Annual General Meeting,

AMENDMENTS TO THE POLCIY
The Company is committed to continuously reviewing and updating our policies and procedures. Therefore, this
policy is subject to modification, Any amendment(s) of any provision of this policy shall be carried out by the

persons authorised by the Board in this regards.

A
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FORM AQC - 2
| Pursuant 1o Section 134(3)(h) of the Companics Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Form for disclosure of particulars of contract / arrangemenits entered into by the Company with related parties referred 1o in Section 188(1) of
the Compandes Act, 2013 including ceriain arm's length transactions under third proviso thereto

1

DETAILS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS NOT AT ARM'S LENGTH BASIS:

a Name(s) of the related pany and nature of relatonship
b Nature of contracts [ arrungements | Iransactions
¢ Duration of the contracts /arrangements | Iransactions
d Shent tems of the contracts or arangements of transactions including the value, iFany ,
¢ |ustification for entering into such contracts or armangements or transaclions " p:;;;b]t
[ Date(s) of approval hy the Board
g -Amount paid as advances, i any
h Date on which () the requisite resolution was passed in general meeting as required under lirt proviso (o Section 188 of
the Companies Act. 2014

DETAILS OF MATERIAL CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT OR TRANSACTIONS AT ARM'S LENGTH BASIS:

it Name(s) of the relaed party and natuee of relationship

b Mature of contracts /arrangements | ransactions

¢ Duration of the contracts / arrangements |/ transactions N

d Shicnt tems of the contracts or arrangements of transactions including the value, of any Applicable
¢ Dare(s) of approval by the Board

[ Amount paicd us advances, of any

All related party transactions are in the ordinary course of business ind on arm's length basls which are approved by Audit Committee of the

Company
For and on behalfl of Board of Directors
_____—-—"
BBl Irm AR Cﬁ--l---—-—'_'._._. -
Mahabirprasad & Deora Hamu 8. Deora
Director (DIN: 01073326) Dircctor & CEO (DIN: (03123069)
Place: Mumbai

Diate: 2th May, 2018




A“ﬁ“ﬂﬂxu*ura e Fo (Y oassd's Qﬁ(’ﬂ‘pf

Tel. : D22-2283 112

AN Ragini Chokshi & Co. e

Company Secretaries

34, Kamer Building, 5th Floor, 38 Cawasji Patel Street, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001.
E-mail : ragini.c@rediffmail.com / mail@csraginichokshi.com
web: csraginichokshi.com

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,
The Members,

TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
4% Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P.M. Road
Fort Mumbai- 400 001. )

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Triochem Products Limited (CIN:
L24249MH1972PLC015544) (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering
the Financial Year 1¥ April, 2017 to 31% March, 2018 complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:




We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
mamtained by Triochem Products Limited (“the Company”) for the audit period covering the
Financial Year 1" April, 2017 to 31" March, 2018 according to the provisions of:

() The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securines Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA') and the rules made
thereunder;

(1) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulation made there
under to the extent of Exchange Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Secunties and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act'):

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015

¢. The Secunties and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Reguirements) Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the Company during the
andit period);

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014 (Not applicable to the Company during the aundit period);

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable as the Company has not issued any debt
securities during the period under review);

f. The securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the companies act and dealing with
client. (Not applicable as the Company is not registered as Regisrar to an issue
and Share Transfer Agent during the financial year under review);

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable as the Company has not delisted its equity
shares from any stock exchange during the period under review)




h. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securities) Regulations, 2009
(Not applicable as the Company has not bought back any of its securities during
the period under review)

We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and

mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and
Regulations to the Company.

We are of the opinion that the management has complied with the following laws specifically
apphcable to the Company:

1. Factories Act, 1948

2. Drugs and Cosmetics Act 1940

3. The Pharmacy Act 1948

4. Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution)Act, 1981
3. Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution)Act, 1974

6. Minimum Wages Act, 1948

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015 and the Listing Agreements entered into by the
Company with Stock Exchanges.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company 1s duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in the compliance with the provision of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, and the same were
sent at least seven days in advance, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least
Seven days before the date of Meeting, and a system exists for secking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.
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We further report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable Financial laws like
Direct & Indirect tax laws, Service tax has not been reviewed in this audit since the same has
been subject to review by the statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.

As per the minutes of the Board duly recorded and signed by Chairman, the decisions of the
Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

We forther report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulation and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, there were no specific events/actions having
a major bearing on the Company’s affair in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guideline etc.

For Ragini Chokshi & Co.
(Company Secretaries)

(@@‘7’
Makarand Patwardhan

(Parmer)
C.P. No.9031/ACS No.11872

Place: Mumbai
Date; 29/05/2018
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Annexure (D) to Board's Report
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN IN FORM MGT-9
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

| REGISTRATION AND OTHER DEAILS

L CIN L24249MH1YTIPLED15544
ii Registration Date 17 0] 1572
{ii Name of the Company Tnochem Prodeuts Limated

iv Category of the Company
1 Public Company Yes
Sub Category of the Company
Y% Company having share capital Yes
v Address of the Registered Office and Contact Details

| Company Name Triochem Products Limited

ﬁ 2 Address 4th Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P M. Road, Fon
3 Town / City Mumbai
4 State Maharashira
5 Pin Code 40000101
& Country Name India
7 Country Code IND
B Telephone with ST1) Area Code Number {022} 22663150
9 Fax Number (022) 22024657
10 Emall Adldress wiww Investor@trichemprodycts com
11 Websae, if any www triochemproducts.com
12 Name of the Police Station having junisdiction where the Registered Office is situated MR A Marge, Police Station
vl Whether shares listed on recognized Stock Exchanage(s) Yes
Dietails of the Stock Exchanges where shares are listed:
S1. No.  Stock Exchanage(s) Stock Code(s)
| Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) 512101

il Name anid Address of Registrar & Transler Agent (RTA)

1 RTA Sharex Dynamic (Indla) P Lad
Unit « |, Luthra Industrial Premises, Safed Pool, Andheri Kurla Road, Andherd (Bast),

2 Adldress
3 Town / Ciy Mumbaj
4 Sute Maharashira
5 Pin Code 40072
6 Country Name India
T Country Code IND
8 Telephone with $TD Area Code Number (022) 2HS 15000
9 Fax Number (02228512885
10 Frad] Address sharenindia@wsnl.corn
11 Website, if any wiww sharexindia.com
n FRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
* All the business contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated -
sk Narne and Description of man Products | Services NIC Code of the % 1o tolal turnover of
No Product / Services the company
| Manufacturing of chemical substances unsed in the manufacturing of phratmaceuticals 24231 100%,
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Annexure (D) to Board's Report
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN IN FORM MGT-5
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014
I FARTICULARS OF HOLTMNG, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Sl - Mot applicable
IV SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capial Breakup as Percentage of Total Equity)

A Lategory-wise Sharcholding

Category of Shareholders Mo, of Shares hold ar the beginning of the Mo, of Shares hold at the end of the year (As % of
year (As on D104 2017) on 4105 2008) Change
Demat  Physical  Towl  %oftotal  Demat  Phwsicl  Totd % oftolal  duning the
shares shares year

A Promoters Sharcholding

1 Indian
a Inddividual / Hindu 1,68, 140 SO0 168,190 BG40 168190 . 168190 6RA49 .
Unelvided Family
h Central Government . . - g Z i z g c
¢ State Government . . - - . . . - .
d Bodies Corporate . . . - - - L = 5
¢ Hank / Fl . . . 2 . ; . S &
[ Any Othee y : - , : . - . .
Sub Totil (A)(1) 168,140 S0 168,190 68649 168,190 S 168190 68049 -
2 Foreign
o SR Indivecduals y . . . . ; ; .
b Cher Indnaduals -
o liohies Corporate - ‘ . : = 3 . z
| il ‘Hank /i . . . = . . . -
| e Any {ther L : : I - ; . 3
Sub Total (A)2) . . ; - - ] : _
Total Shareholding of 1,64, 140 500 1GBI90 68649 168190 - 16H, 190 68649

Promoters (A)y=(AN1}) +{A)(2)

B Public Shareholding

| | Institutions

a Mutual Funds T . - . . - : " ; z
b Burnk « Fl . - - . . > . - -
¢ Lentnld Government . - E i ; . : . 3
o Stale Governmen! . z . " . . . - .
¢ Venture Capital Funds " E . E 2 . ; :
1 Insuranee Companies - B : 2 X Z S x
g Flls - 3 . ¥ < -
| h Foregn Yenture Capital
[rvestors

i Any Other (specify) . : ‘ : . : . ’ -

Sub Towld (By(1) ‘ . ‘ ; . . _ ; .
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Annexure (D) to Board's Report
EXTRACT GF ANNUAL RETURN IN FORM MGT-9

[Fursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Category ol Sharcholders No. of Shires hold ar the beginning of the No. of Shares hold at the end of the year (As % of
year (As on 01.04.2017) oo $1.04.20148) Change
Uemat  Physical  Total % oftotal  Demat  Physical  Total % ofwial  during the
shares shiares el

2 MNon-Institutions

4 liodies Corporate A, (MO0 250 33,250 14,796 3, (D 250 46,250 14,796
i Indian
1 erseas - " . a - = i -

b Individual

i individual Sharcholders . - - . . ; . .
holding nominal share - - z
capilal upto 1 lakh : : 2 = i . z :

it frelivielual Shareholders 11,9100 28,650 40 560 16,555 TG0 28 650 460,560 16.555

halding nominal share

capital i excess of 1 lakh

o Any (nher (specidy)

i Moneresident India . . 3 = : 2 .
1 Dverseas Corporate Bodies . - . - - - .
ni Foreign Nationals . s . 3 ; g .
iv NHFCs Registercd with RHI . . . 4 - : i
v Trust . - . - . - .

w1 Foreign Bodies : s ’ - . x 2 :
Sub Total (B2 GTH0 0 28 900 768 31.351 4TUI0 ZH 00 ThHE 31,351

Tonal Public Shareholding 47010 ZHO00 TRHEIO 31351 47910 2BS00 TOHIO 41351
{(Hi=(B)(1) + (H)(2)

0 share held by Custondians - . - - - - -
foar Lol JHs 8 ATJES

GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C) 216050 M50 245000 00000 2160000 2BO900 245000 100000 £

B Sharcholding of Fromoters

Sl Shareholder's Name Shureholding at the beginning of the vear  Shareholding at the end of the year (As on % of
Mo {As on 01,04.2017) 31.03.2018) Change i
No.of % of total % of Shares Pledged | No.of % of total % of Shares Pledged | sharcholdin
Shares shares  cocumbered o total - Shares shares encumbered 1o total § during
shares® shares® the vear
1 Mr. Ragesh B Deora A6,000 14,0049 i A6 00 14054
2 Mrs Grace R Deora 000 146094 - SO 14.604
4 M. Ramu S Deora 34,500 14082 - Rl B TH VR B
bMe R B Decra 43 270 13 98B - 34,270 14 468 . .
3 Kamu M Dheora HUE 27420 1119l - 27440 11191 - -
Teostal 168,190 6H.649 - 168140 64649 E =
Motes:

| The term “encumbrance’” has the same meaning as assigned o it i Regulation 28(3) of the SEBL (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Hegulations, 2011
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** Annexure (D) to Board's Report

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN IN FORM MGTY

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companics (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)
C Change in Promoters’ Sharcholding

S8l Sharcholder's Name Sharcholding Cumulative Shareholding during the year Reasein
N (01042007 1o 31.04.2018)
Nov, of Shares % of total Shares of Mo, of Shares % of total Shares of
the company the company
1 Mr. Rajesh R Deora Muweiment
At the beginning of the year 36,0001 14.694 36,000 14694 during the
At the end of the year 36,000 14 694 36,000 14.694 year- Nil
2 Mrs. Grace R Deona Movement
At the heginning of the year A W 14 64 365, L0 14694 during the
At the e of the vear 36,000 14 694 36 000 14.604 vear- Ni
3 Mr. Rajiv K. Deora Movement
At the beginning of the year 34,270 14 988 34,270 13084 during the
At the end of the year 34,270 14 988 44.270 14488 vear - Nil
4 Mr. Ramu S, Deora Movement
At the beginning of the vear 34,500 14082 54,500 14.082  during the
i At the end of the year 34504 14082 44 50M) 14082 year - Nil
5 Ramu M Deora HUE Movement
At the begimning of the yvear 27420 11.192 27430 11.192 dunng the
At the end of the vear 27,420 11.192 27420 11.192 year - Nil
Nates
1 Dite of inerease | decrease has been considered as the date on which benefictary position was provided by the Depositones to the
Compuany.
D Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
51 Sharcholder's Mame Shareholding Cumulative Sharcholding during the year
Na. Now of Shares % ol total Shares of No, of Shares % of total Shares of
the company the company
1 & Amprhay Pharmaccuticals 12, (HM0 4. BU8 12.000 4 BUH
Pt Lie
2 Tnochem Laboratones Py 12,000 4.HuH 12,000 A4 HUH
L1ed
4 Ambernath Plasto | 2,000 4598 12,000 4 HH
Packaging Pyt Luel
4 Rajkumar Saral 7200 2940 7,200 2989
5 Vijava Rani Saral 6,250 2.551 250 2.5%1
6 Vishwanath M Jhunjhunwala 3.000 1.224 3,000 1.224
T Vimla 8. Sharpa 2500 1.020 2.500 L.020
8 Savitrs Nareshchandra Jain 2,500 1024 2,500 L2n
4 Snchprabha Agarawal 2,500 1.020 2.500 1.020

; 10 Purshottamlal [hunjhunwala 2,450 L) 2.450 10600
L‘Nﬂﬁ
. 1 The shares of the Company are not traded in daily basis and hence date wise increase | decrease in shareholding is not indicted

Sharehalding s comsolidated based on PAN of the Sharcholder
=

Ly 3
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= Annexure (D) to Board's Report

EXTHACT OF ANNUAL RETURN [N FORM MGT-9

|Fursuant to Section %2(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12{1} of the Companies (Management and Adminstration) Kules, 2014]
E Sharcholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SL Sharcholder's Name Sharcholding Cumulative Sharcholding during the year Reason
No (01.04.2017 12 31.03.2018)
No. of Shares % of total Shares of Noo. of Shares % of total Shares of
the company the company
Directors
1 Mr. Rimu 5 Deora * Movement
AL the begmning of the year 34,500 14.082 44 500 14082 dunng the
At the end of the year 34,5001 14 082 24,500 1408z vear-Nil
2 Mrs firace R Deora Movement
Al the beyinning of the vear 36,000 14 654 56,000 14694  during the
At the end of the vear 36,000 14,6594 36,000 14 6q  vear- Wil
3 Mr. Mahabirprasad S, Deora Movemenl
At the beginning of the vear . . : : during the
At the end of the wear year- Nl
4 Mr. Shyam § Sharmaz Mowement
At the beginning of the year - - - 3 dunng the
At the end of the year . . " § year - Nil
5 Mr Sunil 5, Jhunjhunwala Movement
A1 the beginning of the vear . . . - during the
At the end of the year . ; . - year- Nl
1 Mr. Girish Komar Pungalia Movement
Al the beginning of the year . : : i durning the
M the end of the year . ” z : year - Nil
Key Manaherial Personnel
| Mr Ramu 5. Deora * Mivement
At the beginning of the vear 34 500 14.082 34.500 14.082  dunng the
At the end of the year 34,500 14.082 34,500 14082 year- Nil
2 Mr. Puran . Parmar Movement
At the beginning of the vear - . . - iluring the
At the end of the year : ; . o veawr- Nl
A Mr Bharat B Gangam Movement
M the beginning of the year . - - - during the
At the end of the year . . . - year - Nil
Solcs

1 *Mr Hamu 5. Deors Director & CEO has been included in the list of Directors as well as KMP

bt
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN IN FORM MGT-9
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12{1) of the Companies (Management and Admintstration) Rules, 2014)
¥ INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / scerued but not due for payment: Amount in Hs.
Secured Loans Unsecured Loans D posits Total Indebiness
{Excluding deposits)

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year (As on 01.04.2017)

i Principal Amount 20559457 - . 218%.54.457
il Intercst due bt not pald

it Interest accrued but not due

Total (i i +ii) 28551457 S : 2 H5,51,457

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
i Additon 1,08 00,214 3,26,00),000 - 12, 34.00.214
i Heduction (repayment) 740,49 345 551,00, 000 - 12.91.49.345
Ner Change -1,32.49,151 T8, (40, 000 . -57.49.131
Indebtedness at the end of the financial vear (As on 31.03.2018)
i an:|pa! Amesunt 1.5%.05,326 75,00, 000 M 22K US 420
il Interest due bur not paid - -
. Wl Interest acerued but not due - - .
Total (i+ i +iii) 1,540,326 75.00,000 . 22805426
VI KEMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS ANDY KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL Amount i Bs.
sl Particwalrs of Remuneration (A) Managing Dirctor, Whole: (1) Other Directors (€) Key Managerl Personnel
No time Directors and |/ or Manager CEC s CFO

1 [rross S:Ju.r}-' [:xdu:lmg L0 MISSEC |
{a) Salary as per provisions contained in : ; -
section 17{1) of the Income-tux Act,
1961
{b) Value of perquisites s 1772) of the : : 3
Income-tax Act, 1961
[¢) Profit in licu of salary ws 17(2) of =
the Income-tay Act, 1961

2 Swck Options .

L

Sweat Rouity

4 Commission
- us % of profi
- uthers, specify

5 Uthers - Employer contribution 1 .
provident and other funds

Total (A) 3
Cetling as per the Compabnies Act, 2013 -
P \‘;'H\PNEN#LTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES (under the Companies Act, 2013}
Ton)

*

L)
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHNAGE EXRENINGS AND OUTGO
[Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
A CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
a Energy conservations measurcs Laken

The manufzcturing units of the Company have continued their effonts to reduce the encrgy consumption. Specific encegy consumplion and
absclute unit's consumption arc tracked on a real time basis at individual fGctory © block level and consolidated at Supply Chain Level, This
is helng done with the help of Energy Management Swstem at plang
Some of the key measures taken in all the plants are as below,

1 Work done in improvement in shaft mechanics for reducing motor power

2 Presence sersors and mation sensors used in cabins

5 Pressure based pumping system used for utilities

4 Arresting air leakage and optimzation of air pressure network

5 By controlling process parameters and changing prikess pipe linc system

i Improvisation and continuous monitoring of Power Factor

b Unilising alternate sources of energy
1 Solar energy: Nu
2 Wind energy: Nil
¢ The capital investment on energy consenvation equipment

- Adddlitiona Investments il proposals being implemented for Enetgy Nil
The Company is engaged in the continuous review of encrgy costs, reduction in energy generation cost through mproved operational and
maintenance practices. We have been able to maintiin the power factor near of unity and thereby avalling the rebate on elecineity changes

d Impact of above measures on consumption of encrgy

Impact of the above measure for the reduction of energy consumption and conscquent impact on the cost of production of the goods; s
difficult to assess the definite impact of the measure as the total encrgy cost lorms a small constituent of the overall production costs.

e Power & fuel consumption Amount in s
81 Particulars 7 - 2018 2016- 2017
No
1 Electricity
Purchase - Units 5.85.052 894520
Purchase - Amount 51,12 590 48.97 076
Rate | Unit H T4 824

Own Generation through *
* Not Applicable. Since the Company does not have any Dicsel Generator or Stem Turbine Generator

2 Furnace (]
Purchase - Litre B, 280 10,309
Purchase - Amount 143839 211277
Rate / Litre 2671 20.49
3 Consumption per unit of products Standards
Electncity
Bulk Drig. APLs 25.02 4577 NotApplicable
Furnace (il
Bulk Drug, APls 10.4% 154 Not applicahle

. Reason for varation **
= |t is not feasible to malntain product categorpwise energy consumption data. Since we manufacture a large bulk drugs having

Ny different energy requirements
\ rgy req s [
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** Annexure (E) to Board's Report
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHNAGE EXENINGS AND OUTGO

[Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accoums) Rules, 2014)
H TECHNOLOGY ABSORFTION

a The efforis made by the Company towands technology absorption

The focus of Rescirch & Technology function continues to be in building technological self-reliance by promating in house rescarch,
innovation and creativity 1o design, develop and upgrade its products pipeline continuously o suppon achicving shon, medium and fong:
term business goals of the Company. The entire products ponfolio is based on In-house technology developed by internal sclentists
without suppor from external paniners in the form ol technology, collsborationleenstng, The natere of scivities carned out by Resesrch
& Technology functional the Company are as follows:
I Upgradation of existing products with value sdded features to create product differentiation to retain market share.
2 Continuous value generation through formulation re-engineering. souroing efficiency, process optimization, new raw matenial search,
new munufacturing techniques, vendor collaboration to enhance profitability
3 Support sustainahility initiatives of the company by undertaking joint projects with plant 1o reduce cycle time. cnergy consumplion,
water consumplion and waste generation.
4 Development of laboratory simulation echniques 1o support products validation under different geographical dimate and usage
practices
5 Techrucal service and support related to customens for product scale up and standardization on customer lines
6 Development of test methods for Plant QC that help speed up incoming raw material testing and approval
7 Continues benchmarking of products against national international competition
B Suppon technical capabtlity building across onganzation through in-house seminars, technical training. etc.
9 Support in termis of technological due diligence to fulfil company’s growth strategy through acquisition

b The benefits dertved like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution

1 Fresh water consumption reduced and ETP hoad minimized
2 Ermssion in the air 15 neghigible and maintains all emission parmeters
3 Redue fresh water consumption

¢ In case of imported technology (import during the last three vears reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)
1 Mot Applicahie

d The expenditure incurred on Research and Development

SI. Particulars 2017 - 2014 2016 2017

No.
1 Capital -
2 Recurnng 6.038 18300
4 Tonal B, 138 18,300

G FOREIGN EXCHNAGE EXENINGS AND OUTGO

S Particulars 2017 - 2018 2016- 2017

Nor
1 Eamning - Expon H3.15.948 1,008,326
2 Outgo : lmpon 26,55.34.449 10.95,61,015
4 (utgo : Bank Charges 21 861 TG
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To,
[he Members of TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Report on the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements

We have audied accompanying Ind AS financial sttements of TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS
LIMITED {*the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31" March, 2018 and the
Statement of Profit and Loess (ncluding other comprehensive mncome) and the Cash Flow
Sratement and the Statement of Changes 1in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounung policies and other explanatory informanon (heretnafter referred to as “'Ind
AS finaneial stitements'™),

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors 18 responsible for the marters stared 1 Secuon 134(5) of
Compames Act, 2000 (“the Act”™) with respect to the preparanon and presentation of these Ind
\S fmancaal statements that pive o true and far view of the financil position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes 1n equity of the
Company 1n accordance with the Accounung Turﬁmplus generally -.w:cepttd i Fndia, ncluding the
Indian Accounung Standards (Ind AS) specihied under Section 133 of the Acy read wath relevam
rules issued thereunder,

This responsibility also mcludes mamntenance of adequate accounung records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for prevennng and
detecnng frauds and other wrregulanues; selecnon and applicaton of appropriate accountng
policies; making judgments and estumares that are reasonable and prudenr; and design,
implementanon and manrenance of adequate mnternal financial controls, that were operatng
effectively tor ensunng the accuracy and cumplrttllc‘js of the accounung records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial starements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material musstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

€y :'q,_-_n-.pun-ﬂhj_]_rrj,' 15 1O CXPIEss an opuuon on these Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit. We have taken mto account the provisions of the Act, the accounung and audinng
standards and martrers which are required to be ncluded i the audit report under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules mnde thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditng specified under Secuon 143(10) of the Acr and other applicable authornranve
pronouncements tssued by the Instrute of Chartered Accountants of Indin. Those Standatrds and
pronouncements require that we comply with erhical requirements and plan and perform the
audit o obram reqsonable dssurance about whether the Ind A5 financial statetnents are free from
miternal misstatement.

An audit nvolves pEIﬂ-rmmE pre weedures oo abitan audic evidence abour the amounts and the

L
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disclosures i the Ind AS financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the nsks of matenal misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those nsk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures thar are appropriate
m the crcumstances. An audit also includes evaluaung the appropoateness of the accountng
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounung estimares made by the Company's
Dhrectors, as well as evaluanng the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements,

We beheve thatr the audit evidence we have obtuned s sufficient and appropnate to provide a
basts for our audit opimion on the Ind AS financial starements,

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesad the Ind AS financial staremenrs give the mformanon required by the Acr in the
manner so required and give a true and faie view m conformuty with the accounnng pnnciples
generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs {financial position) as at
31" March, 2018 and us towl comprehensive mmcome (compnsing of profit and other
comprehensive mcome), it¢ cash flows and the changes in equiry for the vear ended on that dare.

Other Matters

The Comparanve financl information of the Company for the year ended 31" March, 2017 and
the transition date opening balance sheer as at st Apnl, 2016 included in these Ind AS hnancial
statermnents, are based on the previously issued financial starements tor the vear ended 31
March, 2017 and 31st March, 2016 prepared 1n accordance with the Compunies (Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2006 audited by the predecessor auditor whose report for the year ended 31"
March, 2016 and 31" March, 2017 dated 26" May, 2017 and dated 27" May, 2016 respectvely
expressed an unmodified opinton on these financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in
the accounung prncples adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS have been
audited by us,

Our opinton 1s not modified 1n respect of this matter.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I As required by the Compames (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) 1ssued by the
Central Government of Indi o erms of sub-secnon (11) of secnon 143 of the Act, we give

i the Annexure A, a statement on the martters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order,
to the extent apphcable.

[

As rl;:qum.:d |J1_.; Secnon 143(3) of the Act, we repott that;

) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which 1o the best of
our knowledge and bebef were necessary for the purpose of our audit,

by In our opmion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examunaton of those books.

b9
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¢ The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Leoss Oncluding Other Comprehensive
. Income), Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this report are in agreement with the books of account.

di o oour opimon, the aforesad Ind AS finanoml statements L'UITI.F].].' with the Accounnng
standards speaified under Secnon 133 of Companes Act, 2013 of the Act.

¢)  On the basis of the watten representations recerved from the directors, as on 31" Mareh,
J0IH and taken on record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the
directors 15 disqualified as on 31" March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 16402} of the Compames Acr, 2013

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financal conrrols over financial reporung of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in " Annexure B" and

With respect to the other matters 1o be included i the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our epinion and 1o
the best of our nformanon and according to the explananons given to us:

7

t.  lhe Company has disclosed the mmpact of pending hugavnons on us financial
posigon 1 its financal statements — Refer Note No.o 24(a) o the financil
stateIments;

ii. The Company did nor have any matenal foreseeable losses on long-Term
contracts mcluding denivatves contracts,

. There were no amounts which were required to be tansferred to the Investor
Educanon and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31"
March, 2018

iv.  The reporung on disclosures relaung o Specified Bank Notes 1s not applicable 1o
the Company for the vear ended March 31, 2018,

For KANU DOSHI ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

Arae Parmar
Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29" May, 2018
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred o n paragraph | of ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in our
Report of even date on the accounts of TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED for the year
ended 317 March, 2018

L a) The Company s mamntining proper records showing full paruculars including
guanntauve derails and situanon of fixed assers.

(b} The fixed assets of the Company are physically venfied by the Management according
to a phased programme designed to cover all the wems over a penod of three yvears,
which, i our epinion, 15 reasonable having regard 1o the size of the Company and the
natute of s assets. Pursuant © the programme, a pornon of the fxed assets has been
physically venfied by the management dunng the vear and discrepancies nonced
berween the book records and the physical inventonies were not matenal and have
been properly dealt with in the accounts

(€} According to informanon and explananons given to us and on the basis of our
examinanon of the records of the Company, the atle deeds of immaovable propernes
are held 1 the name ot the Company

i During the vear, the mventories have been physically venfied by the management. In our
opimion, the frequency of venficanon is reasonable . The discrepancies notced on physical
verfication of inventories as compared to the book records have been properly dealt with
m the hooks of accounts,

w Asinformed to us, the Company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, limited lability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Act. Therefore clauses 3n) and sub clause (a) to (¢} of clause 3{w) are not

applicable to the Company,

iv.  The Company has not granted any loans, has not made mvestments, has not provided any
puarantees and secunty o directors or to any other parties dunnag the vear Accordingly,
clause 3 (iv) of the Order 1= notapplicable 1o the Company.

v I'he Company has not accepred any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sectons
73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under to the extent notified and

therefore clause 3(v) 18 not apphcable.

¥l Ihe Central Government has not prescnbed mamtenance of cost records for the Company
under sub secuon (1) of Secnon 148 of the Companzes Act, 2013 for any of the products of
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v (a) According to the mformanon and explanation given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, the Company 15 generally regular in deposiung undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees” State Insurance, Income Tax,
Sales Tax, Service Tax, Excise Dury, Customs Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess, Goods and
Service Tax with effect from 17 July, 2017 and other statutory dues applicable to it with
the appropnate authonties. According to information and explanagon given to us,
no undisputed amount were in arrears as on March 31, 2018 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became pavable.

(b) According to the nformaton and explananon given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no dues of Value Added Tax, Sales Tax, Service
Tax, Exese Duty, Cess and Customs Duty which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute, The disputed amount in respect of Income Tax 15 as under:

=3 ‘ Name | Descnipnon Accounung Amount | Forum where |
Mo of the ‘ Pertod (Rs.) dispute is
| Statue ‘ . II pending
1| Income | Income Tax | 1992-1993 3,21.069 ,I The Appellate
lax Act, | Dispute-43B Trbunal
1961 | disallowances
Vil According to the récords of the Company exanuned by us and information and explananon

given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repavment of dues to banks during the year.
The Company has not taken any loan or borrowing from government, financial msunons,
and has not issued debentures dunng the vear.

. The Company has not raised any money by way of public 1ssue/ further offer {including
debt instruments) and through term loans dunng the vear. Accordingly, clause 3(1x) of the
order 15 not applicable to the Company,

X Based upon the audit procedures performed and informanon and explanaton given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company by its
officers or employees has been noticed or reported dunng the vear.

xi  The company has not paid or provided for managerial remuneraton during the year.
'ﬁ.u,::nhnL] clause 3 (x1) of the Order 1s not lppln_.tbit to the Company

Xl In our opinion and according to the information and explananons given o us, the nature
of the acrvites of the (::Jmp'.m].' does not attract any :ipf:ci:'ll sIatue :I['IFI.I.E:IIJEE to Nidh
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xu) of the order 15 not apphcable to the Company,

A, According to the informanon and explanauon given to us, and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactons with the related parnes are in comphance with
Sec 177 5
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have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the Indian Accounung
Standards (Ind AS 24 “Related Party Diselosures™ specified under Section 133 of the Act.

X The Company has not made any preferential allomment or povate placement of shares or
fully or partly converuble debentures dunng the vear. Accordingly, clause 3 (xiv) of the
Order 1s not appheable to the Compam

v, In our opinion and according to the mformaton and explananons given to us, and based
on our examinanon of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered 1into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, clause 3

) of the Order 1s not applicable to the Company

Xvi The Company is not required to be registered under Sec 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
Tndie Act, 1934, :’kcn:nrdiﬂgl}: clause 3 (xvi) of the Order 15 oot npphcuhlc to the Company.

For RANL DOSHI ASSOCIATES LLP
Charrered Accounrants
Firm Repistraton Number: W/W 00096

Arnn Parmar
Partner

Place: Mumbat
Date: 29" May, 2018
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (1) of Sub-Section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the 1nternal financial contols over fimancial reporung of TRIOCHEM
PRODUCTS LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31" March, 2018 in conjuncnon with our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the vear ended on thar darte.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and mamtaning internal
tinancial conrrols based on the mnternal control over financial reportng crnitena established by
the Company considenng the essennal components of mtemnal conrol stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Finaneial Controls over Financual Reporting 1ssued by the Insutute of
Chartered  Accounmants  of India  ('1CADY), These  pesponsibiliies  include  the  desipn,
implementation and mamtenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operatng
effecuvely for ensunng the orderly and efficient conduct of uts business, including adherence o
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assers, the prevenuon and detecnon of frauds and
errors, the accuracy und completeness of the accounung records, and the umely prepamnon of
rehiable financial informancn, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit, We conducted our audit i accordance with the
Guidance Note on Aude of Intermnal Fmnancial Conrrols over Pinancal Reporung (the
“Cindance Note™) and the Sandards on ";udjr_i.ni._-_. waued by ICAT and deemed 1o be p:uscnbed
ander Sectuon 145(10) ot the Compames Act, 213, 10 the extent ;1.pi'lhl.'.31b11: toan audir of
mternal Anancial controls, appheable to an audit of Internal Finanaal Controls and both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Iodia. Those Smndards and the Gudance XNore
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtan
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financul reporting
was established and maintained and if such conrrols operated effecuvely 1 all materal respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence abour the adequacy of the
internal financial controls svstem over financial reporting and thew operanng effectveness. Our
aucht of mnrernal financial controls over financial reporting included obining an understanding
of internal financial conrrols over financial reporung, assessing the nsk that a matenal weakness
extsts, and resung and evaluatng the design and operanng effecuveness of intemnal control
based on the assessed nisk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
mcluding the assessment of the rsks of matenal musstarement of the Ind AN financil
statements, whether due to fraud or erron

We believe that the audit evidence we have obruned 1s sufficient and appropoiate to provide i
basts for our audi opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financual
|'|."!“'-'l'tlllg.
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Kanu Doshi Associates LLP Continuation Sheet

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's mnternal finanetal control over hnancial reporting 15 a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reportng and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounung
pnnclplus. A Cﬂmpﬂn}"ﬁ mnternal financal contreol over finangal reporung wmcludes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dlﬁl"lﬂh'lti.tjl'li of the assets of the Company; {2
provide reasonable assurance that transacnons are recorded as necessary to permut preparaton
of financial statements in accordance with penerally accepred accounung prnciples, and that
receipts and  expenditures of the Company are beng made only in accordance with
authorizatons of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or amely detecnon of unauthorized acquisiion, use, or
disposinon of the Company's assets that could have a matenal effect on the financil
SEATCICILES,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent hmmtanons of intemal financul conwols over fimancul reporung,
mcluding the possibility of collusion or improper management overnde of controls, matenal
musstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be derecred. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporung 1o furure penods are subject
to the nsk thar the internal financial control over financal repornng may become inadequare
because of changes in condiions; or that the degree of comphance with the pobicies or
procedures may deteriorare.

Opinion

In pur epinton, 1o the best of our informanon and according 1o the explanations given to us,
the Company has, m all matenal respects, an adequate mternal financial conmrols system over
financial reportng and such internal Anancul contrals over financial reporting were operatng
effectively as at 317 March 2018, based on the nternal control over financial reportung cntetia
established by the Company considenng the essennal components of mnternal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financal Reporting sssued by
the Insomare of Chartered Aceounmants of Inda,

For KANL DOSHI ASSOCIATES LLP
{hartered Accounrants
Firm Registrauon Number; W/ W100096

) a0 mh?'
ool

Araog Parmar
Parmer

Mace: Mumbal
Date; 29" May, 2018
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TRIODCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
(CIN: L24249MH1972PLOOTSS44)
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH, 2015

[Rs. in Lakhs]
Particulars Nate No As at 31 March As ar 31 March As at Ist April
2018 017 2016
ASSETS
{1} Non- Curment Assels
{ 2] Pmpeny, plant dnd equipment 3 13296 154.55 [74.87
(b Capital work - in - preggress 4 . . 3 RA
{ ¢ Investment propery 5 H S 041 ER-7
i d) (ther intangible assets 0 0.z 0.08 b.22
{ &) Financlal assers
{13 Nom current investme nis i - - S04 24
fiiy Cither financial assels 8 763 703 762
{11 Other non - current assets ] 4537 4045 18.93
Tutal Non- Current Assels 184 54 21186 594.65
{20 Durrent Assels
{u) [nventories Lo 821255 219,51 3340
(13 Financial assets
(i} Trade receivables 11 . 244 53 -
i) Cash and cash equivalents 12 9191 40,15 .77
fi) Cther financial assets 13 (1,56 (3,63 .43
{ 0y Other tax assets (Mel) 14 - . 14 50
{4y Other current assets 15 7993 311.12 33,53
Total Current Assets 994.93 H15.94 118.59
TOTAL ASSETS 1,179.87 1,027.80 704,24
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
| [} Eruity share capital 146 24,50 24,50 1450
(b} Other equity 17 778.76 523 54 465 47
Tital Eqquity BO3.24 F48.04 489.97
LIABILITIES
{1y Nom Carrent Lisbilies
(uy Deferred tax Biabilities (Net) 18 1252 16.21 2163
Totl Non- Current Liabilities 1292 16:21 2183
{2y Current Liahilities
fah Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 BE05 285.54 RN
(it} Trade payables H)
Drues of micee and smull enterprises - . .
Dues ather than miceo and soall enterprises 1946 152.34 175.43
{ by Other current liahilities | .89 1.37 1.1%
{ ¢ Provisions 22 1623 1538 127
{d ) Current tax labilites (Net) 4 4657 HY2 1361
Total Current Liabilities 36369 463.55 191,44
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1.179.87 1,027 80 T0%.24
Summary of significant accounting policies z
The accompanyirg notes are an integral part of the financial statements
A+ per our report of even date attached.
For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Dlm\?ura ;
Chartered Accountanis Q
Firm Registration No.: 104746W/W100096 Pl b Ty oo o
Mahahirprasad 5. Deora Puran Parmar
Threctar (DIN: 01073326) Chief Financial Officer e

ouuo

Arate Farmar

B pll (P

1 3 ¥
Rimu . Deora— Ehﬂn(ﬁachﬂﬁ!ﬁ;r’wll

Director (DIN: 00312369) Company Secoetary
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Fariner

Membership Noo 10288
Paloe: Mumbai

Drateal, 29th Mav, 2018




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
(CIN: L24249MIH 197 2PLCD15544)
STATEMENT OF FROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH, 2018

[Rs. in Lakhs]
Particulars Note Na. 2017-2018 62017
1 Revenue from operations 25 3.552.45 1.838.78
I (vher income 2 41.02 1604
i Tatal Income ([+11) 3.593.47 1,854.82
v Expenses
Cost of material consumesd P L5241 1.61542
Furchase for stock-n-rade z 623,35 55 4
Changes in inventories of lnished gowds, stock-in-rade and work-in-progress 3 223 {153.90)
Excise duty om sale of goods i 5340 3458
Employee benefit expenses 3 7310 67 .67
Finance costs 32 3B 48 6.2%
Depreciation and amorizalion expenses 33 24.7% 2766
iither expenses 34 168 Bl 12447
Total expenses (IV) 3, 236,50 1,774.09
Y Peofit before excepliona! items and tax (11-1Y) 35697 8073
vl Add: Exceptional |lems - -
VIl Profit before tax {V-+YI) 35697 8073
VIl Less: Tax expensc
(1) Current tax
ol Current vear 1. 25 29405
of Earlicr years (1.39) {0.14)
{2) Dreteered tax
iof Current vear 319 i5.78)
Total tax cxpense (VI 101,47 23.1%
X Profitafier mx (VIEVID A 255,50 57640
X Other comprebensive income
| afiy Tems that will be reclassified w profit ar loss
iy Incomte b relating o items that will be reclassified w profit or luss = '
bif) leems that will fit be reclassified to profit or loss (0.38) (.63
biii} Income tax relatng o tems that will not be reclassified o profit or loss 010 116}
Tuotal other comprehensive income for the year B {028 047
X Totl comprehensive income for the year (X+X) (A+H) £55.24 38.07
Earning per eouity share (Face value of Rs 1 cach) 33
(1) Basic {in He.) 104.29 2351
(4] Difutedd {in Ke ) 104,29 2331
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The aceompanying notes arc an integral part of the Anancial statements.

As per our report ol even date attached.

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 104740W/ W100096

QNLLCE"U' Director (DIN: B1073326)
e T

Arail Parmar

Fartner amu S Deopa

Membership No.. 1026KF
Palee: Mumbai

Dated: 29th May, 2018

5%

Director (DIN: 00312369)

For and on behalf of Board of Direcio

WM b~
Mahabirprasad 5. Deorz

—

Ll

Puran Parmar
Chief Finaneia! Officer

ﬁ{{l ”{j____é;:i:—.f/—fi_::_- .

Bharat Becharbhaj Giangani
Company Secretary




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
(CIN: L24249MH1972PLC015544)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2014

A CASH FLOW FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before tax and Extraordinary liems

Adjuestment for;

Dividend income on from Mutual Fund designated at FYTEL -

Depreciation / Amartisation 2473
Interest [ncome (LT
Heclussification of remeasurement of employee benefits (.38}
Interest Expenses .59
Net gain on sale of investments
levestment Expenses 0.09
Sundry balance written back (Net) {0.04)
OFERATING PROTIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES
ADJUSTMENTS FOR WORKING CAPITAL CIHANGES
Mon Current investments
(ther financial assets E
Cither non - curreni assets 5,02
Inventores (603.02)
Trade Recetvable 244.53
Dither financial assers 0n.o7
Cither current assets 23120
Trade pavables (BO.34)
Cither current liabilities {048}
Provisions .84
Cash Grenerated from Cperations
Direct taxes paid | (refund)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

3y CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fived Assels including Capital Work in Progress i283)
Sale of Non Current [nvestments -
Investment Expenses (r0gy
Interest Heceived 177
Dividend Received -
NET CASH USED [N INVESTING ACTIVITY

€} CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Met (Decrcase)) Increase in Short Term Borrowings {57.49)
Interest Pajd {3457

NET CASH USED 1IN FINANCING ACTIVITY
NET CHANGES IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS(A+BA+C)
OPENING BALANCE OF CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

CLOSING BALANCE OF CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

.-'.-':"':-_._H‘“‘\.
o PToy . Ry

:\
e

X i,
>
(e

i, b

“n

017-18

15697

5722
414.1%

(202.18)

212.01
[6T.0%)
144 98

(1.15)
{1.15)

(92.08)

{92.08)

51.75

il 15

(1.08)
27.66
(1.64)
.63
5.28
(2.06)
LERY .

{1000
(21.46)
{1H6.15)
(244.5%)
(4. 20
(27740,
(23.0%)
.24
14.11

{2060
AT
(0,08
1.64
1.08

28554
(5.28)

[Rs. in Lakhs]
2016-17

8073

2887
1050

{738.68)

(629.08)
{19.0H)

{648, 16)

$71.24
371.24

280.26
2801.26
3.38
36,77

4015
3.38



TRICCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
(CIN: L24249MH19T2PLCO15544)
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2018

| Hs. inn Lakhs|
Notes
ance O & Cash ents
1 (ash and Cash Equivalents Includes: (Refer Note No 12)
CASH IN HAND 108 1.40
BALANCE WITH SCHEDULED BANKS
- In Current Account 83 3B7S
91.90 40.1%
2 Previows year figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever considered necessary 1o make them comparable with these of the current
vear
As per our report of even date attached.
Far Kanu Doshi Assoclates LLP For and on behalf of Board or’)hmnn
Chartered Aceountants \m&‘ me
Firm Registration No.: 104746%W,3 ! ot
. S Deora Puran Parmar
Qk‘mﬁ)’ Director (DIN: 01073326) Chief Financial Officer 2
) = . o Lo
Arati Parmar o B é'g-‘;raf‘ /L'____f______ ;
| i - v
Partner ! Ramu 5. Deora ltharat Becharbhai Gangani
Membership No.- 102884 Director (DIN: 00312369) Company Secretary
Palce- Mumbai

Dated: 29th May, 2018
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TRIOCHEM PRODCUTS LIMITED
(CIN: L24249MH19T2PLCO15544)
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED} 315T MARCH, 2018

|Rs. in Lakhs]
A. Equity Share Capital
Particulars No, of Shares Amount
Balance at at 1st April, 2016 (Face Yalue of Rs.10/- cach) 2,45.000 24,50
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Balance at at 31st March, 2017 2,45.000 24.50
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance at at 31st March, 2018 245,000 24.50
B, Other Equity
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other items of Other Total
Capital Reserve General Retained comprehensive income
Reserves Earnings Remeasurement of net
defined benefit plans
Balance at ar 15t April, 2016 0.04 177.86 28766 -0.08 465.47
Frofit for the year - 5700 - 57 6
Remeaurements of Defined Benefit Flan - 047 047
Fair Value effect of Investments of shares -
Balamce at at 3151 March, 2017 0.04 177.86 345.26 0.39 523,54
Profit for the year - - 255.50 255,50
Remeaurements of Defined Benefit Flan - (0.28) (0.28)
Fair Value effect of Investments of shares . :
Balance at at 31st March, 2018 004 177 86 600,76 0.10 77876
As per our report of even date attached.
For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directo /
Chartered Accountants ")
[ E }
Firm Registration No.: 1047 e et }W"Jﬁ o WCrmrre oy
A Mahabirprasad 8. Deora Puran Parmar
QVLLQ&J' Director (DIN: 01073326) Chicf Financial Officer
: ...-r.a—ﬂ"'"’-"d_ﬂ_“ = 5 Al :
R ] r .{” €

Arabi Parmar QF R j,;"é.r 424 _f— d_{_____._.-
Partner Rimu §. Deora BHararBecharbhai Gangani
Membership No.: 102888 Director (DIN: (031236%) Company Secretary
Palee: Mumbai

Dated: 29th May, 2018
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

Company overview

Trinchem Products Limited (the "Company”) is an existing public limited company incorporated an 1701/1972 under the provisions of the Indian
Companies Act, 1956 and deemed to extst within the purview of the Companies Act, 2013, having its registered office at 4th Floor, Sambava
Chamber, Sir B M. Road, Forr, Mumbai - 400 001, Tt has been engaged primarily in the business of manufacturer and exporter of pharmaceuticals
products, AFls and chemicals. The equity shares of the Company are hsied on BSE Limired ("BSE™). The financial statements are presented in
Inelian Rupee (3)

Significant accounting policies

A

Basis of preparation of financial statement

The finenciad statements Complies inoall matenal aspects with Indian Accounnng Standards {Ind A%) notficd under the Companies {Indian
accounung Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notificd under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act”) and other relevan
provisions of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepred in India

The financial statements up 1o vear ended March 31, 2017 were prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under
Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended) notified under Secoon 133 of the Act and other celevam provisions of the Act
("Previous GAAPT),

These financial statements are the first financial statements of the Company under Ind AS. The date of ransition w IND AS is 1st April. 2016,
Refer note 34 related 1o First-time Adoption of Ind AS for an explanation of how the rransition from previous GAAP o Ind A5 has affecred the
Company's fnancial position, financal pecformunce and cash flows

First-time adoption: In accordance with Ind AS 101 on Firstdme adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, the Company’s first Ind AS
financial statements include, three balunce sheets vie. the opening balance sheet as at st Apeil, 2006 and balance sheews as ar 31st March,

207 and 2008 and two statements each of profic and loss, cash Bows and changes in equity for the years ended 315t March, 2017 and 2018
wpether with related notes. The sume sccounting policies bave been used for all perods presented,

The finandal statements were suthorized for lssue by the Company's Board of Directors om 29th May, 2018,

These financial statements are presented in Indian Hupees (INK), which is also the funcrional cerreney. All the amounts have been rioundesd
off to the nearest laos, unless otherwise indicated

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial stitements requires management 0 make judgments, cstimates and assumptions in the application of
accounting policles that affece the reported amounts of wssets, liabilities, ncome and expenses, Actudl resulis may ditfer from these estimares,
Continuous evaluation s done on the estimation and judgments based on historical experience and other facrors, including expecratinns of
future events that are believed t be reasonable Hevisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively

Rasis of transition to Ind AS

The adoption of Ind A3 i carned out in accordance with Ind AS 101 on 17 April, 2016 being the transition date. Ind AS 101 requires that all
Ind AS stancards that are fssued and effective for the year ending 317 March, 2018, be applivd reteospectively and consistently for all the
pericds presented, However, in preparing these financal statements, the company has availed of cemain exemptions and exceptions in
accordance with Ind AS 101 as explained below. The resulting difference between the carrving values of the assets and labilines in the
francial statements s at the transttion date under Ind AS and provious GAAF have heen recognised directly in eguity at the transition date

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certaim optional exemprions and mandatory exceptions from the retrospective application of cerain
reguirements under Tnd A5,

(2) Exemptions from retrospective application
i The Company has elected 1o apply the following optional exempuion from full reteospective applicarion of Ind AS:
b} Deemed Cost

i Ind A5 101 permits first time adopter w clect 1o continue with the careying value for al of is property, plant and equipment s
recognized in financial statements as ache date of ransition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed
cost as at the date of transition, This exemption can also be used for intangible asscts covered by Ind AS 38 imtangible Assets.
Accordingly, on transition to Ind A3, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its Froperty, Flant and
Equipment recognized as at 1% April 2016 (rransition dite) measured as per the previous GAAF and use that carrying value as the
deemed cost of Property, Plant and Equipment.

il The following mandatory exceptions from retrospective application of Ind A% applied by the company:




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the vedr ended 31 Maech, 2018

D

ic)  Hstimates exceprion
U an assessment of the estimates made under the Previous GAAP financial statements, the Company has concluded thar there i no
necessity to revise the estimates under Ind AS (except for adjustments o reflect any difference in accounting policies), as there s no
objective evidence that those estimates were In error. However, estimates, that were reguired under Ind AS but not required undee
Previous GAAP, are made by the Company for the relevant reporting dates, reflecring conditions existing as at that date without using
any hindsigh.

() De-recognition of inancal assets and liabilities exception
Fimancial assets and Habilines de-recognized before transition date are not re-recognized under Ind AS

Current versus non-current classification

ALl assets and Habilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's operating ovcle and other criteria set our in the
Schedule 11w the Companies Act, 2013 Based on the nature of products and the time berween the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cvele as 12 months for the purpose of carrent - non-
current classification of assets and liabilitics

Foreign currency translation

| Functional and preseniation currency
Items included in the financigl staensents of the Compiny are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company operates (‘the functional currency'). The financal statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which s
Company's functional and presentation currency.

il Transactions and balances

Foredgn currency transacnons aee translated into the functionz! currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Foretgn exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the transladon of monetry assets and
luthilities denominated in forefgn correncies at vear end exchange rates are generally recognised In profit or loss. All the foreign
exchunge gains and losses are presented in the statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other expenses or other income as
applicable

Property, plant and equipment

O transition o Ind A8, The Company has elected 1o continue with the carrying value of all of is property, plant and eguipment recognised
s ae 1 April 2016 measured s per the previous GAAP and used those carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and
cguipment.

i Freehold land is carried ar historical cost including expenditare that is directly atributable to the acquisition of the land.

it All other wems of properry, plant and equipment are staed @t cost ess accumulated depreciation. Cost includes expenditure thar i
directly attribueable to the acquisiion of the ems,

fii Subscquent costs are included in the assets carrvng amount or recogrised s 1 separate asset, as approprate, only when it probable
thiar future economic benefits associaed with the jeem will flow o the company and the cost of the iem can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as o separate asset is derecognised when replaced. Al other repairs and maintenance
are chiarged 1o profit or liss during the reporting period in which they are incarred.

iv Cost of Capital Work in Progress ("CWIE') comprises amount paid towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as
of cach balance sheet date and construction expenditures, other expenditures necessary for the purpose of preparing the CWIP for ot
intended use and borrowing cost incurred before the qualifying asset s ready for intended use. CWIP is not depreciated unil such time
s the relevant asset is completed and ready for its intended use,

v Deprecintion methods, estimated useful lves and residual value
() Fixed assers are stared an cost less accumolated depreciation.
{hy Depreciation is provided on o written down value method at the rates and mannee as preseribed under Schedule 11 o the
Companics Act, 2013 The depreciation charge for each period 1s recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless it s included in
the carmving amount of any other asser. The uscful lle, residual value and the depreciation method are reviewed atleast e each
financial vear end, I the expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for prospectively as a change in
ACCOUNLING estimarte.

i Tangible assets which are not ready for their imended use on reporting date are carried as capital work-in-progress,

wil The residual vilues are not more than 3% of the original cost of the gseer
ﬁ@—




TRIOCHEM FRODUCTS LIMITED
.+ Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

Estimated wsehul lives, resideal values and deprecianon methoeds are reviewed annually, taking ino account commercial and
technological ohsolescence as well us normal wear and tear and adjusred prospectively, if appropriate,

Grains and losses on disposals are determined by comparning proceeds with carrving amount. These are included in profit or loss within
ather expenses or other income as applicable,

G Investment Property

Froperty that is hebd for longterm rental vields or foe capaial appreciation or both, and that is not secupicd by the Company, is clussificd as
Invesement property, Tevestment property is measared initially at ity cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
tosts, Subsequent expenditure is capitalised o the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable thar future economic benefits wssociaed
with the expenditure will fow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliablv. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed when incurred. When part of an investment property s repliced, the carrving amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
Invesement properties (except reehold land) are depreciared using the straightline method over their estimated useful lives ar the rates
prescribed under Schedule 10 of the Companies Acr, 2013

H Intangible assets

Un ransition to Ind A5, The Company has elected (o continue with the carrving villue of all of its intangible assets recognised as at 1 April
2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and used those carrying value as the deemed cost of the intangible assets

i An intangible wsset shall be recognised of, and only i€ (3} it is probable that the expected furure ceonemic benefirs thar are anrburable
to the asser will flow to the Company and (b) the cost of the asset can be measured reliably,

i Computer software s capitalised where it s expected to provide future enduring economic benefits. Capitalisation costs include
licence fees and costs of implementation | system Integration services. The costs are capitalised in the veir in which the relevam
software 1§ implemented for use. The same 5 amortised over 2 period of 3 vears on straight-line method.

[ Horrowing Cost

. { Borrowings are mitially recognised ar Bir value, net of transaction costs incurred . Borrowings are subsequently measured ot amortised
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemprion amount is recognised i profit or loss over the
periad of the horrowings using the effective intorest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan fucilities are recognssed as
transaction costs of the foan o the extent that it s probable thar some or all of the faciiy will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred undl the draw down cccurs. To the extent there 15 no evidence that s probable that some or all of the facility wall be drawn
down, the fee s capitalised as a prepavment for bguidity serdees and amortised ever the period of the facilio o which i relates

il Borrowings are classified as current financial lizbilivies unless the group has an unconditional right to defer sectlement of the labiicy
for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is o breach of 2 material provision of a long-term loan arcangement on ar
before the end of the reponing pericd with the effecr thar the Habsdity becomes payuble on demand on the reporting date, the entity
does not classifv the labilioy as curreny, if the lender agreed, after the reporting peried and before the approval of the financeal
statements for ssue, not o demand payment s 3 consequence of the breach.

)} Income tax, deferred tax and dividend distribution tax

The Income tix expense or credic for the vear is the tax pavable on the current year's taxible income based on the applicable income tax rate
adjusted by changes in deferred tax wssets and labdlities anciburable 1o temporary differences and 1o unused oo losses,

Corrent and deferred tix s recognised in the peofit and loss except 1o the extent it relates 1w items recognised dicectly in equity or other
comprehensive income, in which case it s recognised in eguity or other comprehensive income respectively

i Current income 1ax

Current 1ax charge §s hased on toable profit lor the vear: The tax rares and tax daws used o compute the amount arg those thar are
eracted or substantively enacted, ar the reporting date where the Compiny uperites and generates taxable income. Management
perodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect 1o sinations in which applicable tax regulation (s subject ©
interpretation. It establishes provisions wheee appropriate on the basis of amounts expected o be paid o the ax authorities.

Caurrent 1ax assets and rax habilities are offset when there i a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against currenm i
liabilines and Company intends either to settle on a net basts, or o realise the asset and settle the lability simultanecusly.

il Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of wscts and liabilities and
their carrving amounts in the financial statements at the reporting date. Deferred tax asscts are recognised 1o the extent that it is




TRIOCHEM FRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

Beferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liabiity in 2 ransaction other than 3 business
combination that at the tme of the transaction affeces acither accounting profit nor toable profic (1ax loss),

Deferred rax assets and liabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected 1o apply in the period when the assetis realised
or the liability s senled, based on tax rates and tax laws that kave been enacted or substantively enacted by the halance sheer date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assers s reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted 1o reflect changes in probability thar
sufficient table profits will be available to allow all or pare of the asser 1o be recovered.

Deferred mcome tax assets and labilities are offset against cach other and the resultane ner amount is presented [0 the Balance Shect,
if und only when, {a) the Company has a legally enforceable right 1o see-off the current income tax assets and liabilitics, and (h) the
deferred income tax assets and lishilities relate 1o income tax levied by the same taxation authority,

Minirum Alternate Tax credit is recognised 2s an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the company will
pay nuemal income tax during the specified period. Such asset s reviewed ac cach Balance Sheer date and the carrying amount of the
MAT credit asset is written down ta the extent there & no longer a convinang evidence (o the effect that the Company will pay normal
inceme tax during the specified perod,

K Revenue recognition

Hevenue is measured at the fair value of the consideranion eeceived or recevable, Amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive of excise dury
and met of retuens, trade discount tases and amounts coellected on behalf of third pasties. The Company recognises revenue as under:

I Sales
{1) The Company recognizes revenue from sale of goods when:
{a) The significant risks and rewards of ownership in the goods are transferred o the buyer as per the terms of the contract, which
coincides with the delivery of goods
(b} The Company retans neither continuing managenal involvement 1o 1he degree usuilly associated with the ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold
i) The amount of revenue can be refiably measured
{d) It is probable that furere economic benefits associared with the rransaction will Aow 1o the Company.
() The cost incwrred or 1o be incurred i respect of the transaction can be measured reliahly,
i) The company bases fts estimates on historical results, tking into consideration the wpe of customer, the tvpe of ransaction and the
specitics of each armingement.

Il Other Income

(i} Imerest income

Interest income from debr instruments is recognised using the effecive interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that
cxactly discounts estimated futuee cash receiprs through the expected life of the fnancial asset to the gross carrying amoant of 2
financial asset. When caleulatng the effective interest rite, the group estimates the expected cash fows by considering all the
contractual teems of the fimancial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and sinilar oprions) bur does not consider the
expected credit losses.

i} Dividends
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss only when the right to receive pavment is established, it 15 probable that the economic
benefits wsoctuted with the dividend will Qow o the group, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

(iit) Expart benefits
Export incentives are accounted for on expart of goods if the entitlements can be estimated with reasonable accuracy and conditions
precedent (o clum are fulfilled,

L Ioventories viluadon

i Haw materiils. components, stores & spares, packing material, semi-finished goods & finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net
realisihle value,

1 Cost of Raw Miterials, components, stores & spares and packing material is arrived ar Wesgheed Average Cost and Cost of semi-finished
woodd and fintshed good comprises, row materials, dicect labour, other direet coses and redaed production overheads

ili Scrap s vadued at net realisable value
v Due allowances are made in respect of slow moving, non-moving and obsolete inventones: based on estimate made by the
Management.
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Impairment of Assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful bfe are not subject 10 amorization and are tested annually for impairment or more frequently
i events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be inpaired Other assets are wested for mpairment whenever events or
chitnges In circumstances indicate that the casrving amount may not be recoverable. An impaiement loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount The recoverable amount i the higher of an asser's fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use: For the purposes of issessing impairment, assets are grouped at che lowest levels for which there are separutely
identifiable cash inflows which are lacgely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of wssets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets that suffered impairment are ceviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Fair ¥alue Measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments at far value at each balince sheet date. Far value is the price thar would be recerved to
sell an asset or paid 1o wransfer & liability in an orderly transsetion between market participants at the measurement date. The e value
measerement is based on the presumption thar the eransaction 1o sell the asser or transfer the liabiliry takes place either

- In the principal market lor the asset o lisbilitv, or
- In the absence of a principal market. in the most advantageous market for the asset oc liabilioe

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measared
using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or lability, assuming that market participants act in
their coonemic best interest.

A fair value measurement of 2 nonfnancil asser akes oo account & market pacticipun’s ability o generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best wse or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate In the crcumstances and for which sufficient data are available w
measure fair valiee, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Al dssets and labilitles for which fair value 8 measured or disclosed in the finandal statements are categerised within the fair value
higrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant 10 the fir vidue measurement as 3 whole.

Level 10 Quored (unadjusted) prices for identical assets or labilities in active markets

Level 20 Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly or indirectly obsenvable

Level 3¢ Sigruficant inputs o the fair value measarement are unobservable

For assets and labilives that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transters
have oeeurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categonization (based on the fowest level input that is significant 1o the
Fuir value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assers & labilies on the basis of the nature,
chiracteristics and the risks of the asset or liabiliey and the level of the falr value hierarchy as explained above,

Financial Insirument
2 Hecognition, classification and presentation
The financial instruments are recognised in the balance sheer when the company becomes a party o the contrictual provisions of the
instrument,
The Company determines the classification of s financial mstruments at inital recogninoen

The Company classifies its financial assets in the Wllowing categories: aj those w he measured subsequently at fuir vidue (either
through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and b) those to be measured at amonized cost. The classification
depends on the entity’s husiness model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Financial assets and labilities arising from different transactions are off-set against each other and the resultant net amount is presented
in the balance sheet, (Fand only when, the Compaay currently has a legally enforceable right w ser-off the celated recognised amounts
and intends either o sentle on a net basis or to realize the wssets and setde the liabilites simultaneously,

b Measurement
(A} Initial measurement

Ar initial recognition, the Company measures Enancial instraments at its fair value plus, in the case of @ financial asset not at faie value
through peofit or loss, transacrion costs, Ctherwase transaction cosw ane e spacement of profit and loss,

{B) Subsequent measurement - financial assets b

-
The subsequent measurement of the financial assets depends oa thea s
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(i} Financial wsscts measured at amortized cost

Assets that are held for collection of contraciual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely paymenes of principal and interest
are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate ('EIR') method (if the impact of discounting / any iransaction costs is
significant), Interest income from thess inancial assets is included in finance income

(i) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOC!)

Equity investments which are not held for trading and for which the Company has elected w0 present the change in the fair value in
other comprehensive income and debt instruments that are held for collection of contractual cash fows and for selling the financial
wssces, where the assers' cash flow represent solely payment of principal and merest, are measured ae FVTOCL

The changes in fair value are taken theough OCI excepr for the impunment, interest (basis EIR method), dividend and foreten
exchange differences which are recognised in the statement of profiv and loss,

When the fnancial asser s derecognized, the related sccumulated fair value adjustments dn OCH as an the date of derecognition are
reclassified from equity and recognised in the statement of profitand loss. However, there is no subsequent reclassification of Fair value
wiins and losses to statement of profit and loss in case of equity instruments,

(iii} Financial asscts at fair value through profit or loss {'FYTPLY)
Al equity instruments and Anandal asses thar do oot meet the corena for amoetized cost or FYTOCT are measured at fir valoe
through profic or loss. Inreeese (hasis EIR method) and dividend income Irom FVTRL is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
within finance income | finance costs separately from the other gains losses arising from chamges in the fair value,
Impairment

The company assesses an a forwird locking basis the expecred credin losses associared with s assets carried ar amoneeed cost and debn
mstrument carried at PVTOCL The impatrment methodology applied depends on whether there has been 3 significant increase in
credit risk since tnitial recognition. [f credic risk has not increased significantly, twelve month ECL is used o provide for impasement
loss, otherwise liferime TCL is used.

However, only in case of rade receivables, the company applies the simplified approach which requires expected lifetime losses w be
recognized from initial recognition of the receivables

(¢} Subsequent measurement - financial labilities
Other financial labilines are innally recognised at tur value less any directly annbutable transaction costs. They are subsequently
mcasured ar amortized cost using the EIR method (if the impact of discounting ¢ any transaction costs is significant).

C  De-recognition
The financial habilines are de-recogised from the balance sheer when the under-tving obligations are exminguished, discharged. lapsed,
cancelled, expires or legally released. The financial assets are de-recognised from the balance sheer when the rights o recewve cash
flows from the fnancial assers have expired. or have been transferred and the Company bas transferred substantially afl risks and
rewards of ownership. A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financid asset of one entiy and a financial lability or
equity instrument of another entity,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash n hand, deposits with hanks, other short term highly liguid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible 1o known amounts of cash and which are subject 1o an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash Aows, cash and cash equivalents includes outstanding bink overdridt showe within
current liabilities in statement of fnancial balance sheet and which are considered as integral part of company’s cash management policy.
[nvestments

On transition o Ind AS, cquity investments are measured ar faie value, with value changes recognised in Other Comprebensive Income,
except for those mutual fand for which the Company has elected o present ehe fie value changes in the Stacement of Profit and Loss,

Trade receivables

Trade recenables are recognsed intually ar their fair value and subsequently measured at amorised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for expected credit loss

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent labilites for goods and services provided o the Company prior (o the end of financial year which are unpaid.
casured at amortised cost using cffective interest ratz
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T Provisions, contingent lizhilities and contingent assers

i Provisions:

A provision is recognized, when company has a present obligation: (legil or construttive) as a result of past events and it is probable
that an outtlow of resources embodying coconomic benefits will be requirsd to settle the obligation, in respect of which a refiable
estumate can be made for the amount of obligation. The cxpense relating to the provision is presented in the profit and loss met of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money i marerial, provisions are discounted using 3 current pre-tas rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the eisks specific w the lablity. When discounting is used, the Increase in the provision due w the passage of tme i
recognised s a finance cost.

it Contingent Liabdlity

A contingent liability 1s a possible obligaton that ariscs from past evenis whose existence will be confirmed by the coourrence o non-
oceurrence of one or more uncenain future events bevond the control of the Compuny or 4 present obligation that is not recognized
because i s nor probable thar an outflow of resources will be reguired o setde the obligation. & contingent Eabidity also arises in
extremely rare cases where there s a labdioy thar cannot be recograzed because it cannot be measured reliahly. The Company does nit
recognize & contingent Hability but discloses ity existience in the financial statements

Comntngent labilives, if moertal, are disclosed by way of notes and conungent assets, i any, are disclosed in the notes w financal
statements

ifi Contingent Assets
Contingent Assets are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits s probable
I} Earnings per share
| Basic earniigs per share

Basic carnings per share 15 calculated by dividing:

- the profic ateribuzable o owners of the Company; and

- by the weighted average number of equity shares ourstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares
issued during the year

i Diluted earnings per share

Diluted carnings per share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share e take inlo account

- the after income tax eftect of interest and orher finzncing costs assaciated with dilutive potential equity shares; dnd

- the werghted average number of addinenal equicy shares thar would have been outstanding assuming the conversion o alt difative
potential equiry sharcs

¥ Leases

i As a fessee
Leases in which 2 significant portion of the risks and rewards of ewnership are not transiereed o the company as lessee are classified s
operating leases, Payments made under operating leases (netof any incentives received fram the lessor) are chirged to peofit or loss on
a strafghe-ling basis over the period of the lease unless the payments-ire structuced 1o increase in ling with expected general inflation
compensate lor the bessor's expected inflaionary cost increases.

ii As a lessor
Lease income front sperating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised i income on a steaight-tine basis over the lease term
unless the receiprs are structured o increase in line with expected geneeal inflation 1o compensate for the expected inflationary cost
increascs, The respective leased assets are included in the halance sheer hased o their nature.

W Employee benetits

{ Short-tenn ohligations
Liahilities for wages, salaries and leave encashment including non-moneary benefits that are expected 1o be senled wholly within 12
months after the end of the period in which the emplovees render the relited service are recognised in respect of employees' servces
up to the end of the reparting period and are measured ar the smeunts expected to be paid when the liabilities are seided. The
Habilities are presented as current emplover bencfit ohligations in the bidance sheet,
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il Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liallities for carned leave are not expected o be sertled wholly within 12 months after the end of the perad in which the
employers render the reluted service. They are therefore measured a5 (he present vidue of expected furure pavments 1o be made in
respect of services provided by emplovees up o the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefis
ere discounted using the appropeiate market vields ot the end of the reporting period that have terms approximaring o the terms of
the related obligation Remeasurcments as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in
profit or Joss

The ebligations arc presented as current Habilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional rght to defer
scitlement for ar least twelve months atter the reporting perod, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to oocur

Post-employment abligations

The group operates the following post-emplovment schemes:

B

Defined benefit gratuity plan:

Gratuity and Leave encashment which are defined benefits are acerued based on actuarial valvation working provided by Independent
actuary. The Contribution is charged 1o profit and loss,

The liability or asser recognised in the balance sheer in respea of defined benefie gratity plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan. The defined benefit obligation s caloulated annually as
per the report on independent actuary. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows by reference o market vields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have 1ermy
approxtmating o the terms of the related ohligatdon. The net interest cost s caloulared |'l1lr applying the discount rate to the net balance
of the defined henefit abligarion and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of
profic ard loss Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjusiments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directdy in sther comprehensive Income: They are included in retained earnings in the
’ statement of changes inequity and in the lalance sheer

b Defined Conribution plan:

Comtribution payzhle to recognised provident fund and superannuation scheme which s defined contrbution scheme s charged 1w
Starement of Profic & Loss. The company has no [urther obligation to the plan beyond its contribution,

X Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reponted wsing the indirect method, wherehy net profit before tae s adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature, any defereals or accreals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associged with
dvesting or financing cash Gows, The cash Jows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregared.

Y  Operating Cyele
Based on the nature of products sctvities of the Company and the normal time between scquisition of assets and their realisaton in cish or
cash cquivalents, the Company has determised s operating cvele as 12 manths for the purpose of classification of its assces and lishifitics as
current and non current

Rounding of amounts

2]

M amounts disclosed i the finuncial statements and notes have been rounded off t the nearest Ropees Lacs jup o ovo decimals), unless
arhervise stated as per the reguirement of Schedule ] {Devision 1)

6%
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

[Rs. in Lakhs]
NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Particulars Face As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016
Value Quantity Amount Quantity Amount (Quantity Amount
Non Trade Investments
Ungquoted
Mutual Funds (AL FYTEL)
SBE Peemler Liguid Fund - Direct Plant - Bs. 1,000~ & 4 34,717 825 3 24
Weekly Dividend
Towal Value of Unguoted Investments 369,24
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
|Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016 |
Deposits ThH4 763 T.62
763 763 T2
OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
[Fﬂfﬁﬂllal‘ﬁ As at March 31, 2018 As al March 31, 2017 As at Aprdl 1, 2016 |
Balanve with Government Authoritics 1473 30,68 1750
Advance recovenitble in cash or kind or for value to (.64 071 |04
b peceived
4547 40,49 18.93
INVENTORIES
|Pﬂnlﬂ-ﬂﬂrs As at March 31, 2018 As gl March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016 |
Raw Material (Refer Note No, 10.1) G400, 14 36,40 .33
Packing Material 134 1.35 [1%
Work-n-Frogress 39,04 14,86 {1
Fimshed Goods 140,50 16041 2741
Stores and Spares .46 -
B22.53% 219,51 3330

Note No. 1001: Raw Material invemory includes Goods-in transie Bs. 30,70 lakhs (315t March 2017 Rs Nil and 35t April 2006 Rs Nil)

TRADE RECEIVABLES

[Particulars

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

As at April 1, 2016 |

(L nsecured)
Considered Doubthul
Considered Gond (Refer Note No. 42y

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2i4.53
24453

[Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016 |

Balunce With Hanks

- i Current account Q0,53 1B.75 36,249

Cash on Hand 1.08 1.4 ir44
91.91 4115 .77

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

|P=niculm

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

As at April 1, 2016 |

Interest Hecelvahle

OTHER TAX, ASSETS (NET)

0.56

0.56

(.64
0,63

{h.43
£43

EPﬂ:ﬂﬂllm

As at Mareh 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

As at April 1, 2016 |

14,50

1450
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CITHER CURRENT ASSETS

[Rs. in Lakhs]

Farticulars As at March 31, 2018 As wt March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016 |
Balanee with Central Excise and GSTN . 24 4443 2242
Export Duty Draw Back 342 0.52 .45
Advance 1w supplices and service provider 045 258.94 -
Advance recoverable in cash or kind or for value 1o 147 1.59 5,55
be received
Frepaid Expenses 3127 372 457
Ardvange 1o Gratity Fund | Hefer Note No. 38) i).48 151 14
EQUITY SHARE CAFITAL
Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016 |
Authorized Share Capital
230,008F Eepuity shares, Re. 1400 par value 2500 25.00 2500
(41 March 2017 250 000 cauity shares Re 10/ each)
o Aprit 2006: 250,000 erquity shares Re. 1= each)

T 25.00 25.00
wssued, Subscnibed and Fully Pald Up Shares
245,V Eyuity shares, Re. 1b- par value fully paid up 24.50) 24.50 24.50)
£30 Muarch 20170 245,000 couity shares Re. 104 cach)
{1 Aprik 2076 145,000 equity shaves Re 10 cach)

2450 i 24,50 st

Nowe No. 16.1: The reconcilation of the number of shires outstanding at the beginning and at the ead of reporting period 31-03-2018:

Particubars As at March 31, 2018 As al March 31, 2017 As at 1st April, 2016
Mo. of Shares  Amount No. of Shares  Amount No. of Shares  Amount
Number of shares at the beginning 2,45,0100) 24.50 2,45 00 24.50 2,45,000 24.50
Ladid Shares ssued during the vear - - : . - -
Less © Shares bought back (il any) - - . . - -
sumber of shares at the end 245,410 24.50 245,000 24.50 445,000 24.50

Note No. 16.2: Terms / nglts attached 1o equity shares

iA) The company has only one chss of equity shares having a par value of Re 10/ per share, Each holder of equity shares Is entitled 1o one vote per
shiare The dividend proposed by the Board of Direciors is subject 1o the approval of the shareholders in the easuing Annual General Mecting

(B} In the event of lquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be emided W receive remaining asscts of the company, alter
ilistribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to e number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Note Mo, 16.5: The detals of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:
A at March 31, 2018

wame of the shareholder As at March 31, 2017 As at 1st April, 2016

Numberof % held as at Mumber of % beld as at Number of % held as at
shares held shares held shares held
Mr. Fumu 5§ Deorn 34,500 14.08% 34,500 14.08% 34,500 14, 08%
M. Rajesh B Deors 6,000 14.69% 36,000 14.69% 3,000 14.69%
Mro ety B Deora 44,270 13 949% 34,270 13.99% 34,270 14.99%
Rarru M Dieora HUTE 27420 11.149% 7420 11.19% 27420 [ 19%
Mrs Grace L Deora A, 16K 14.069% S60,000 14.09% 3y, D) 14,094
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TRIOCHEM FRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes 1o the finandal siatements for the vear ended 31 March, 2018

[Rs. in Lakhs|

OTHER EQUITY
(Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016 |
Reserves & surplus®
Capital Keserve # 0. 004 004
Gieneral Hescrves # # iTT.8G 17786 17186
K Larmed varnings GO0, T7S 34525 IHT .65
Other Comprehensive [ncome (O0])
-Hemeasurement of net defined benefit plans 0,1 10 (.39 139 {008 .08

TS s 165.47

A Cupital reserve madnly represents amount on capital aceount.

## General reserve relfects amount wransferred from statement of profit and loss in accordance with regulations of the Companies Act, 2013,
* For movement, refer stalement of changes in equity

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

I_Piﬂ.iclﬂm As an March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 s at April l.20‘1lﬁ|

Delerred tax liahilities (Net) (Refer Note No. 18.1) 12,92 16.21 I1.53%
12.92 16.21 21.83

Note No.: 18,4

{Particulars Net balance as at 1 April| Recognised Instatement of | Hecognised in|  Net balance as at 31 March

| 2017 profir and loss 0cl 2018

'Deferred Tux Liabilitics, {Assets)

et it i

[Propeny. piant and cquipment | 1717 (2.42) 14.75

Hvestment Property / Other Intangible

Ass s o

Er Value through FSL (0.16) 0.16)

!Faar Valee through G 016 . {0.30) i

Wathers Master 0.39 (0.27) : 0,12

i.’i::pcrms silowahle under income tax {1.45) {0,500y {185%)

lon paymenl hasis " =il

| 16.21 @3.19) (0.10) 1292

[Pariculas Met balance as at 1 April|  Recognised in statement of | Recoguised in|  Net balance as st 31 March |

[ 2016 profit and loss ocl 2017 |

\Deferred Tax Libilities (Assets) .

Froperty, plant and cquipment | 2155 (5.38) 1717 |

Investment Property / Other Intangible i

Pwsels i B

[Faar Value through PAL 019 (0351 (1116)]

{bair Value through OUI - - 114 1.6 |

\Others Matter 051 (0.12)] 09

I!iqucs allowzhle under incenic ax {1.4d) 007 - (1.55)]

lon payment bases |

l 2183 D 0.16 16,21 |

Income wax

The major componcnts of income s cxpense [or the vear ended 51 March, 2018

|Paniculzrs For the year ended 31 March, | For the jear ended 51 March,

| 2018 2017

Profit and Loss.

Current tax - o, of reversal of earlier years © Rs 1,59 Lakhs (31 March 2017: Bs. 0.14 104 G0 8.0

Lakas)

sy 1l Tav— net of reversal of carlier years - R, Nil (31 March 2017: Rs. Nil)_ o~ (3.19) B (5.78)]
- 101.47 2313 |




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
MNutes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March, 2018

[Hs. in Lakhs|
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate
Particulurs For the year ended 31 March, | For the year ended 31 March,
018 007
Frofit belure income Lix expense 156,97 B T4
Tax at the Indian tax rate @ 27 $52% (31 March 2017 (2040 Y, 94,36 4 91
Add: hems giving rise to difference in tax
Timing Difference Wil (3.17)
{Effect of non-deductible expenses 374 332
Effect of nom-taxable [ncome - ”. By
Transition Effect . 0.08 |
Uthers () 26) (0,11)
Tax for carlier vears (159 ik 14}
[Total Tax Expenses ] 10147 23.13
Note: The figures have been regrouped reclasified, wherever necessary
19 BORROWINGS
(Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016 |
Secured (Refer Note No. 19.1)
From Bank
Exprori Packing Credit 153.05 285 %4 0.00
Unsecured (Refer Note No. 19.2)
From Dircctor 7500 = .
238.05 165 54 0.00
Note No. 19.1- The above loan from Saie Bank of fndis, Banker of the Compnay, s seoured primarnily agadnst 131 charge on the Company's Current
Ansrs
Node No. 192 The above loan from Director repaysible on demand
20 TRADE PAYABLES .
[Pasticutan As at March 31, 2018 As al March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016 |
Current
Liscs of micro and small enterprises (Refer Note - . -
Wi LY
Dues ather than micro and small TL9G 152,54 175,44
enterprses (Kefer Note No 201
7196 T 175 43

Note Noo 20.1; The company has not received information from vendors regarding their status under the Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act 2006 pndd henee disclosures relating to amounts unpaid as a8 the year end together with interest paid |/ payable under this Act bave
not been given

21 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

[Farticulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016 |
Statutory Dues Fayihle 08y 112 44
Uither Liabilivies . 0.25 _un
{hHY 1.37 1.1%
2 pOvVsions
Fartieulan As at Macch 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016 |
Provision for Emplovee Benefits
For |eave Encashmeni {Unfunded) 449 165 1.27
For Incentive 1573 13.74 N S
16.22 15.38 E’_

23 CUKRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

Zod ASSO g at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016 |
.
& 4657 892 a6
4657 B 892 1361



. TRICCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes 1o the Anancial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

[Bs. in Lakhs]
24 a) CONTIGENT LIABILITY #
[Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016 |
1) Disputed Tax Liabilty 32 521 3.21

Income Tax Dispute - 43 Disallowance

Imeome Tax Act, 1961 pending with The Appellate
Tribunal

321 321 21
Note:

# The management does not expect these demands/claims to succeed. Claims, where the possibility of outllow of resources embodying ceonomic
benelits is remote. have not been considered in contingent lability,

25 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

|Particulars 2017 - 2018 2016 - 2017 |

Sale of Products (Refer Note No. 25.1) 3,548.57 1,835.20

Other Cperating Revenue

Scrap Sales 0.02 0.26

Export Incentive .86 352
3,952.45 1,838.78

Note No. 25.1: Goods and Service Tax (G5T) have been effective from fuly 1, 2017, Consequently, excse duty, value added tax (VAT), Service tax
ele. have been replaced with GST. Until June 30, 2017, Sale of products’ included the amount of excise duty recovered on sales. With effect from
July 1, 2017, Sale of produces’ excludes the amount of GST recovered. Accordingly, revenue from Sale of Products, and Revenue Fom operations
for the year ended March 31, 2018 are not comparable with those of previous year. Excise duty on sales amounting to Rs 53,40 lakhs (31st March,
2017 Bs. 32.58 lakhs) has been included in sales in Statement of Profit and Loss,

26 OTHER INCOME

[Particulars 2017 - 2018 2016-2017_|
Interest Income (Kelfer Note No, 26.1) 1.77 164
Lither Non Operting |ncome
Dividend income on from Mutual Fund designated at FVTPL . 108
Net gain on sule of investments : 206
Sundry Balance Written Back (Net) .04 .
Exchange Fluctuation Gain (Net) .21 11.26
3102 16.04
Nete No. 20.1 : Break-up of Interest lncome
Interest income on other deposits 63 070
Interest on income tax refund - 094
Interest on sales tax refund 1.14 -
157 1.0
27 COST OF MATERIALS CONSTMED
[Particulars 2017 - 2018 2016 - 2017 _|
Raw Material
Inventory at the beginning of the 306,40 4.34
Add: Purchases during the year 2,814.32 1,635.57
2,850.72 1,639.90
less: Sale of Raw Material 4.47 -
Less: Inventory at the end of the year Bl 44 3640

Materials Consumed 2,2%6.81 1.6034.50




TRIGCHEM FRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

28
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[Rs. in Lakhs|
Packing Material
Inventory at the beginning of the 1.34 116
Addd: Purchases during the yvear 15,48 12 50
19.82 13 66
Less Sale of Packing Material 1,83
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 239 1.4
Cost of Matertals Consumed 15 6i) 12.42
225241 1,615 82
PURCHASE FOR STOCK IN TRADE
Particulars 2017 - 2018 2016 - 2017
Traded Goods 62335 55 6l
62335 55 66
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK IN PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE
Particulars 2017 - 2018 2016 - 2017
(]3] end o car
Finished Goods 16691 27 H
Work In Progress 14 B (1.0
181.77 2787
Inven at
Firushed Goods 14ih 511 16691
Work In Progres RUEI] 14 86
179 54 181.77
123 (15390}
EXCISE DUTY ON SALES OF GOODS
Farticulars 017 - 1018 2016- 2017
Excise duty on sules (Reler Note No. 25.1) 5340 1158
2340 258
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Particulars 2017 - 2018 2016 2017
s-ﬂ-l-&l.l"il.'..'i. “’Hﬁr_& illld Bonus ﬁ..‘ Jﬂ hl H_:'n
Contribution 1o Provident and other fund 504 LR
Staff Welfare Expenses 376 155
310 07.67
FINANCE COST
Particulars 2017 - 2018 2016 - 2017
Interest Expense on Short Term Bank Borrowing .45 528
Interest Expense on Income Tax Payment 3 B8 0495
Interest Experse on Loan from Director 25.15 .
38 4H 6.2%
DEPHECIATION & AMORTIZATION EXPENSES
Particulars 2017 - 2018 2016 - 2017
Veprectaton an Property, Flant and Equipment 4.2 T
Depreciation an Investment Propernty 045 48
Aaiiggisation on Intangible Assets 0.06 014
24.7% 2764
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

|Rs. in Lakhs|
34 OTHER EXPENSES
Particubirs 2017 - 2018 016- 2017
Consumption of Stores and Tools 0.0%
Power & Fucl TL5H 51 m-s
Hepairs & Mainicnance
Plant & Machincry A HS 6.45
Butlding 464 4004
Uthers 225 15.74 109 1058
Insurance Charges TH4 e 51
Rates & Taxes 5214 L9
Rent 016 016
Payment to Statwtory Auditor (Refer Note 8o 34.1) 1.23 18]
Water Charge 1.92 | 52
Dunation 1451 904
Labour Charges 17.60 3126
Frewght and Forwarding 1.15 130
Listing Fres 2 BH 229
Pustage and Telephone 055 1 6H
[nterest and Penalty 0,00 013
Legal & Professional T2 365
Registrar & Share Transfer Fee 054 g}
Hank Charges LZF 0oy
Miscelluncous expenses B.13 isz
Investment EXpenses .09 (1.08
164 80 12237
Nole No. 34,1 Payment to Statutory Audilors
A Suditors |
Awdit Fees (including Limited Keview) 116 113
Tax Audit Fees . .25
Towards GST. Service Tax * .06 0.20
122 1 ;ﬁh
In Cither Capacity
Certilication 0.10
Cither Matter .10
Ot of pocket cxpenses 001
Towards GST Service Tax ® 006 0.4
007 0.24
Tistal Auditors Remuneration 1.25 1.82

* Nole Out ol above GSTY Serviee Tax eredit of B 006 lakhs (Previous Year Hs Nil) has been taken and the same has nol heen debited w

Statement of Profit & Lina

35 EARNING PER SHARE

Particulars 2017-2018 20162017

(A} Profit avtributable o Bguity Sharcholders 25550 37400
(1) No. of Equity Share outstanding during the vear 245,000 245,000
(02} Face Value of cach Eguity Share (K ) 14 10
(1) Basic & Diluted earming per Share (Hs ) 10429 2351

30 Financial Risk Management

The Company's activilies expose it to credit nsk, hoguidity nsk. market nisk and p

e risk and the impact thereol in the financial



TRIGCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Nertes o the Anancial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

- [Rs. in Lakhs]
’ Fisk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit Risk Lush and cash equivalents, trade|Credit ratings, Heview of aging{Strict  ecredit  conrol  and
receivables and financial assets.  {analysts, on quarterly basts. monitoring system, diversification
of counterparties, on quarterly
brasis

Lirguichity Risk Trade payables and other financial|Maturity  analysis,  cash  flow|Maintaining suffident cash | cash
liabilitics. projections equivalents  and  marketable
security and focus on reallsation ul\

receivables.

Market Risk — Foreign Exchange Financial assets and Habilities nonForeign currency exposure review The company partly hedged due 1o
denominated in INR anel sensitivity analysis matural hedge and is cxploring o
hedge its unhedged positions.

{Price Risk ]Eh:m,g: im price of raw material | The comprny sourcing{The company is ahle 1o pass on
components from vendors directly, |substantial price hike il any to the
| hence it does not hedge  Bslcustomers

exposure 1o commaodity price risk.

I'ne Board provides guiding principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as credit dsk. liquidity risk,
prive risk and foreign exchange risk effecting business operation. The company’s risk management is carried oot by the management as per
guidelines aund policies approved by the Board of Directons,

(A} Credit Risk

Credit nisk 15 the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
Credit nsk ensompasses the direct nsk of defaoly risk of detenoraton of creditworthiness as well o3 concentration risks.  The Company s
expused to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables), deposits with banks and loans given.

Credit Risk Management

The company's credit risk mainly from trade receivables as these are tvpically unsecured. This eredit risk has always been managed through credit
approvals, establishing credit limits and continuous monitoning the creditworthiness of customers 1o whom credit is extended in the normal
corse of business. The Company estimates the cxpeeted credit loss based on past data, avaifable information on public domain and experience.
Expected eredin losses of financal wsets receivable are estimated hased on historleal data of the Company. The company has provisioning policy
fuor expeeted credit losses.

The maximun cxposure 1o credit risk s ar 51 March 2008, 31 March 2007 and 1 April 20016 is the carrving value of such trade receivables as
shown in note 11 of the Anancals.

(H) Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk represents the inability of the Company 1o meet its financial obligations within stipulaled dme. To mitigaie this nsk, the Company
maintalns sufficlent liquidity by way of working capital limits from banks

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial labilities at the reporting date based on contractual
undiscounted payments:

| Particulars | Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total |
As at 31st March, 2018 ]
ilillmm‘inp L2805 - 228.05
Trade payablies T1.94G : T1.96
Total 300.01 - Fx0.01
Particulas Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total j
(As at 3181 March, 2017
ll"-umnwng,'s 44534 - 283.54
Frade payables 15234 . 152.34
447 88 - 437.88




i TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the financhul statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018
{Rs. in Lakhs]
. Particulars Less than 1 vear More than | vear Total
As al 1st April, 2016
Borrowings .00 | - (K}
Trade payables 17544 - 175.43
|Total 175.43 . 175.43

(C) Market risk
(2} Foreign currency risk

The Company has exposure te foreign currency risk on account of its payable and receivables in (oseign currency, The company is [ollowing
natural herging o mitigate the loreign currency risk

Clpen exposure

The Company's exposure w foreign currency risk which are unhadged at the end of the reporting period 15 as follows:

Particulars 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
UsD UsD UsD

Trade receivables - Foreign Currency . 24.400

Trade receivables - INK . 15.81 -

Trade pavables - Forelgn Currency . . 248,400

Trade pavables - INR - - 164,69 |

Sensitivity Anaysis-

Ihe Company is mainly exposed to changes in USD. The sensitivity analysis demonsieate a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rate, with
all uthee veriables held constant 5% apprecation/depreciation of USD and Buro with respect to funciional currency of the company will have
tmpact of following {decrease ) Ancrease in Profit & vice versa,

[ Particulars 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017 Ist April, 2016

(mpact on profit or loss for the year Strengthens Weakening Strengthens Weakening Strengthens [ Weakening
ILI..SD Imipract . - 0.79 {075 (H.2%) Hi3
otal : . 0.79 (0.79) (8.23) 8,23

(by Interesi rate risk

Interest rate risk is the nsk that the far value or fawre cash Dows of a financial instrument will Quctuate because of changes in market interest
rater In order to oplimize the Company's position with regard 1o interest income and inferest expenses and w manage the interest rate sk,
rrexsury performs a comprehensive corporate interest rate risk management by balancing the proporiion of the fixed rale and foating rale
linancial instruments in its total portfolio

[he cxposare of company borrowings o interest rate changes at the end of reporting period are as follows

Tarticulun As at 31st March, 2018 As at 3151 March, 2017 As at Ist April, 2016
Variable rate borrowings 153.05 283,54 {100
{Fimed] e borrowings | 75.00 - -
[Total horrowings ; 228.05 285.54 0,00

Sensitivity Analysis

Frofitdoss is sensitive 1o higherdower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes ininterest ras,

él'&ﬂi{lliﬂﬁ Basis Points lmpact on Profit belore Tax

31st March, 31st March, 1st April, 2016
i 018 2017 .
ncrease in Basis points +50 S 1.43 000 |
[Decrease in Fasis points 50 (6,77} aay] o)

(I Price risk

The company is exposed to price risk In basic ingrediants of Company'’s raw material and is_peesscie materials from vendors direcdy. The

Wi ASS




. TRICCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
" Notes 1o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

; |Rs. i Lakbs|
, = 47 Related party disclosures as required under Ind AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”, are given below:

ap Name af the related party anid description of relationship.

1. No. Related Parties Mature of Relationship

(1) Mr. Bamu 5. Deora Director and CEC (Key Managerial Fersonnel)

i) C amphray Laboratories Kev managenal person s proprietor

fiii} G amphray Pharmaceuticals Py Ll | Relatve of key managerial person have conteol

(i) Triochem Lahorataries Py Lid Relative of key manzgerial person have control

(v) Trinchem Products Gratwity Fund Kev managerial person is trustes

b Detalls of Transactions during the year with refated parties

5l No, :;Flclﬂcrl partics wature of Transactions during the vear 2017 - 2018 2016- 2017 |

i) |G Amphray Laboratories Purchase of goods 25495 17,44
Sales of goods 34Th 82 1.767.49
E-Payment of expense & recmbursement paid (.05 3m

{51} |4 Ammphray Pharmaceuticals Pa Lud Purchase of goods TR 4452

(i} Tricchem Laboratories P Lid Purchase of goods 138,68 100,87

[iv) Trinchem Products Gratuity Fund Contribution paid 1.03 013

{v) Mr. Hamu 5. Decra Loan taken during the year 626,00
Loan repard during the year 551 .01 -
[nteeest paid 25.15

¢} Halances at end of the year with refated pamies,

8, Mo, [Related parties Nature of Transactions during the Asat 315t March, | Asat 31st March, | As at Lst April,
year 2018 msz 2016

it M Bamu 5. Deora E[.nan pavahle T340 .

- {1 amphiray Laboratiries EFumha_l.r uf goaods - THOH
W Siles of goods 3 22871 :
(i} Triochem Products Gratuiny Fund Contnbuton paid 0,49 1.51 1.64
. 44 Emplovee Benelits

Asper IND A5 19 "Emploves Benelis”, the lisclosures of Emplayvee benefits as defined in the sad Accounting Standartds are given below

(1) Pefined Copnbution Flan

Contributien i Defined Contribution Mlan includes Frovidend Fund. The expenses recognised for the vear are 25 under -

Particulars 2007 - 2018 20162017

Employer's Contribution e Providend Fund Ly 20

{ii) Defined Benefit Plan
{a) Cimatuity:

The Company aperates gratuity plan wherein every employee (s entited w the benefic equivadent w15 days | one month salary last drawn for each completed year of
service depending on (e date of joining, The same is payable on termination of service, rerirement or death, whichever s earlier. The benefit vests 2fler 5 vears of
Comirlaus service

(b The following tables ser out the assumptions aken, status of the gratuity plan, the amounts recognised in the Company's financial statements asat 31 March 2018 and
1 March 2017

51 Mo Farticulars 2017 - 2018 20162017
Viluatuem Hesults as at 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-17
1 Change in present value of obligations
PV at beginning of period 641 SH9
Interest cost 045 047
CUTTENL SErice oost 083 8.5
Tast service cust - (non vested benefits)
_P‘_ar.l service cost - (vested benefis) 5
Benefits paid {66}
{Centribution by plin particpants %
[I:I.uz-mras combinations
| Curtadlments
Seticlements oy
| Actuanal (Guin) / Loss on obligation 0.8 {U.Hﬂiﬂ
[PV atend of period 732 641]
U O, Thyerest Expenses
; Ei‘:.‘rb[ cosl L (45 ] AT




TRICGCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

* Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

; |Rs. in Lakhs|
o ] Fair value of plan asscts
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning 62l 31
Interest cost {h48 .47
i) et Hability
PYO) al beginning of period bl 5.69
Fair value of the assets a1 beginning report 6,21 514
Net liahility .20 071
¥ MEL interest
Interest exponses 045 (AT
[nterest income 048 047
Melinterest (0.02)
¥ Actual return on plan assets
Actual return on plan assets .32 (52
|Less interest income included above 044 47
{Heturn an plan assets excluding inerest income i0.16) {13
VI L\cmmﬂ {Grain) / Loss on obligation
(g 1o demegraphic assumplion® -
True to fimancial ussumpnon {03057} 13
Lue to experience (.35 a7y
Total serwarial (Gaing / Loss (0,24 {11 B4)
* This figre dues not reflect interrelationship between demographic assumpion and financil ssumption when o limit s appled on the benelit the effec)
will be shown as an expericnce
¥ii Fair value of plan assels
Dpening fair vidue of plan assets .21 514
Adjustment to opening fair value of plan assets 020 T
Herurn on plan assets excluding imterest income [1116) (0.15)
| Interest income 4% 047
1 Comtributon by emplover -
| Comtribution by emploves F
| Benslin paid {1.665) %
| Fair valug of plan assers at end BT 621
1% Past service cost recognised
Pust service cosl - (non vestel benefis)
Fast service cosl - (vested benefits) |
Average cennaning futiee semace oll vesting of the benefit
Recognisud past servios cost - mon vested benelis -
Recognised past service cost - vested benefits
Unrecogrised past service cost - non vested benefits
X Amount to be recognized in the balance sheet and statement of profit and loss account
PV at end of period 742 641
Fadr value of plan assets at end of period b7 621
|Funded status {1.24) {20
[ Nel Assets Liahility recognized in the halance sheet (1.24) {0.200)
Xi Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss account
[IUrrent senace cost 0 H4 (.84
MNetinterest 042y -
Pust service cost - (non vested benefits) g |
Past service cost - (vested benefits) -
|Curtailments effect -
Settelements effect -
Expense recognized in the statement of profit aml loss account (-8 0,84
Xl {Other comprehensive income {OC])
Actuaril (Gainy | Loss recogaized [or the period (.24 (84}
:\.\.\L‘! Lt effeet = |
’ Retum on plan assets excluding net mnerest T 8SS00 0.16 0.15%
lnrecognised actuanal [Gain) ¢ Loss ffom presious pesiod {&W&}\ *
Tonal actuanal (Gaing ¢ Loss recognized in {OC]) f}-‘a}" ‘{'3\ (144 (069)




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

* Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

[fs. in Lakhs|
X Movements in the liabiity recognized in balance sheet
Cpening net liabliy 0.0 07l
Adjustment 10 opening balunce {03201 (07
Expenses as above 0.8 089
Contribution paid .
(ither comprenehsive income (001 044 (068}
Closing ne liability 124 0.0
XI¥ Schedule [ of the Companes act 20013
Current Habality (*) 1.24 0,20
Mon - current lability 607 sl
{*) Mar 14, current liability based in Rev Schedule vl
Y Frojected service cost 31st March 2019 (h594 -
LXV] Asset information Target | Total Amount
i Allocation %
(.ash and cash equivalents 9T 5.4
Cratuity fund -
| ekt Security - Government bond i (114
Exjuity Securities - Corporate debl securilies
Crther insdrance contracts (Trustess of the Company) -
Froperny -
Total itemized asscts T G007
Xl Assumptions as at
Mortality LALLM 2006-08 11k
{Interest / Discount rate 7.69% 7 -3?%?
{Hate ol increass in eompensation 4001 e}
!ll.nnu;! increase 10 healtheare costs :
| Future changes in maximum stae healtheare beaelis i .
| Expected average remaining service 1241 - 1281 |
|Retirement age 58 veans ]
|Exmuployes altrition rate Lpto age 45 4%
] Ab and dbove 1%
XV Senstivity anilysis (3K Discount rate EX: balary Escalation Rate
MWDK+ 1% PYO DR - 1% | PYOER + 1% | PYO ER- 1%
PN T 525 T3 166 ThA, 606 TOATIS
XX Expecied payout
Year Expected Expected Expected Expected Expected Expected
Ot firse Ciuga second Crutge third Duign fourth g fifth C1ungo Sextn
lEn vears
[PV payouts 4200 (1% 0,25 0,67 .39 AA
XX Assets liability compariscns
4TS $1-Mar-14 F1-Mar-15 $1-Mar-16 F1-Mur-17 41-Mar-18
| PV0 at end of period 580 Gl Tk
{Flan asscts 5.19 6.21 6107 |
Surplus / (Defiein) 071 {0, 20y 1241
|Experience adjustnients in plun assets {1115 (0,15} 16
A INarrations

L) Analysis of defined benefit obligation

The number of memebrs under the scheme have decreased by 5 00% However, the wtal salary mereased by 3.23% during the aceounting persod, Simiarly

the resultant liability at the period over the beginnin of the period has increased by 14 08%

!i] Expected rate of rerurn basis

|8ince the scheme funds are invesied with Trusiees of the Company EROA i based on rate of rerden expected from investment made by the Trustees

13) Deseription of the plan assets and reimbursement conditions

edr credit rating

{Descrption given at XV of this Annexure. The Governement securities can-be realised s and when needed. Bealisation of Corporate bands would depent an




2 TROCHEM FPRODUCTS LIMITED
* Suues e ihe financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

& [Rs InLakhs)
ot 3 Derivatives

T yewr end loreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by o derivative instrument or otherwise are 4 under.

[4) | Amaun Recelvuble in Foreign Cureney on account of the lollowang
Particulars Fureign Currency As on 31032014 | Ason 31.04.2017 As on 01.04.20 86
Amount in Foreign | Amount in Bs. in | Amount in Foreign | Amount in Bs. in Amount in | Amount in Hs.
Currency lakhs Cureency lakhs Foreign in lakhs
Currency
b | Receivables jusp | - - 24,400 15.81
ibAmount Fayable in Foreign Currencyon sccount of the following
Particulars Foreign Currency Ason 31032018 Ason 31.03.2017 Ason 01.04.2016
Amount in Foreign | Amount in Rs. in | Amaunt in Foreign'| Amount in Rs. in Amount in Amount in Rs.
| Currency lakhs Currency lakhs Foreign in lakks
| Currency
| [Payable st - : : -] 248400 164 69
Al Disclusure relatiog o provisions: The moverrent i the following provisions o sumemarnsed as under
T nue Ko, |]-";:J1-'lslﬂn Relazed 1o Opening Balance .‘I.:ll:-lT[iuns Unilisatien Heversal Closing Balance
T
___ :In;:miw 1o Sendor Munagement Statf 1373 . ' . 1373
l Total 1373 - - . 1373
** Noge

The Company gives long rerms sesvice awaril i employves based on the period surviverd by them and performance of the company.

41 Durmg the presous year, the details of Specdied Bank Notes held anid ransacted dudng the damonetzaton persod (Hth November, 2006 10 20th December, 20065 24
pivwided in the tahle below

{Barticulurs Specified Bank Other | Tonal '
| Notes (SBNs) | denomination

o nates |
l'_ ]
(Closing cash in hand a5 on 08.11.2016 027 0.0% Tl
T4 1 Py mitted recesjes . 0.74 0,74
) Pormited payments : 0.22 022
1) Arouetdepooicd LA 027 : 27|
E_EJIJ:'IIR cusly In Fand s on 30 12 2016 = 057 57 !-

12 Balanwes of Trade Recervables. Trade Pavabies and Loans and Advances are subject 1o confirmation and consequential adjustment. if any
43 Cepital Management
£ Hisk Managemenl

fur the purpose of the Company's capital management. capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves arributable w the equity holders. The primiry
vshjcetive ol the Company capilil management is o masimise the shareholder value,

The Conipany manages its capilal stractere and makes adjusiments i light of changes in econonmie conditions and e requircments of the financial covenants. The
fompany monitors capital using a geanng ratio aml i measured by net debt divded by Equity. The Company's Debi s defined as longtenm and shon-term borrowings
i ing current maturiies of long wim bocrowings 2nd el equity (as shown m balance sheet) includes issued caplial and all other reserves

(1) Gearing Rato (ideal less than 50%)

Thi grearing ratn at end of the reporting period was as follows.

Particulars | 31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 |
Borrowig [ 21805 285,54 000
Less: Candy and Cash Equivaicnts G100 41015 3677
Net Lebt 136.15 445,39 | 3677
[ Tonat Exuity o B3 26| 54504 4207
!Tral Equiry and Net Debt 93941 T93.44 453,20
|Gearing ratio 14.49% 30.93% N A

A4 FIEST TIME ADOPTION OF IND A%

rdingly the impact of transition has been provided in the
d and reclassified wherever roguured wocomply with the

_The Company bes adopied Ind AS with effect from 1st Aprl 2017 wath comparat




" TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
* Notes w the financlal scatements for the vear ended 31 March, 2018

- |Bs. in Lakhs]

v Explanution |- Exemptions and exceptions avalled

Sevoui below are the zpplicable Ind A8 107 optonal exempuons and manduory exceptions applied in the wansition from previous GAAP to [nd A5
(1} ind AS Opticnal exemptions
eemed Cost - Property, Plant and Equipnient, Capital work-in-progeess and Intangible Asscts

I AS 101 permits a first-time adoper to clect to continus with the carrving value for all of us property, plant and equipment as recognised in the financial statements s
al the datc of transibion 0 Ind AS. measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as is decmed cost as at the date of transition. This exeraption can also be wsed for
intangible assers covered by Ind A% 38 [nangible Assets. Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of is property, plant and equipmen, Capital work-in-
progress snd intangible sssets at thewr previous GAAF carrang values.

{11} ind AS mandatory exemptions

{L} Estimmates

An entity's estimates in accordance with Dod AS' an the date of transition 1 Ind A5 shall be consistant with the estimates maile for the same date in accordance with the
previuus GAAP (after adjustreats o rellect any difference in aecounting policies) unless there is an objective ¢vidence that those estimates were in error

{it) Classification and measurement of financial assets (other than equily instrumenis)

Ind AS 101 requires an catity to assess classilication and measurement of financtal assets on the basts of dee fiers and circumstances that exiss o e date of ransidon o
Ind A5

O (i) De-recognition of financizl assets and financial liahilives

I A 101 peguires a first tme adopler o oapply the de-recogrition provisions for Ind AS 108 prospectively for rransactions ocourring on o after the date of tansition 10
Ind AS. however, [l AS 101 affoss [irst vme adopter woapply the derecognition requirements provided that the informaton aeeded o apply Ind AS 109 w financid
ussely and hnaneid [abalitiss derecognisen 25 o result of past Ind AS 107 retrospectvedy from the date ol entity's choosing, transactions was oblained ot the time of
pritally accountitig for the ransacions

Eftects of ind AS sdoption oo Balance Sheeoat 315t March, 2017 and 1t Aprl, 2016

T Particulars Note No As at 315t March, 2017 As al 1st April, 2016
As per [GAAP Adjustments on | A5 As per [nd AS As per 1GAM | Adjustments on | AS As per [nd
transition 1o Ind transitlon o ind AS
?\(_il!l - LAITENS h.:s:'_lx =
W [Froperty, Plant and ! 16376 w41 15435 184 76 {9.80) 174 87
Erpipment
(b Capatal work - in- E = - 388 . 4,88
Prigress
ic) Investme ot 1 . 941 YAl . Y 9.5
Property
it} Cther Intangible Assets (0% . (b 4 .22 - 0.22
] Finencil assels
{1) Son Correnl 4 - - . IoH 48 0.7 ok 24
i Investments
I it Crther Finangl 764 . T 7 hd : T
\_ . I'\.‘l’i-l'.'lﬁ | . _
T |Chthser nom - currend | 40,39 ; i 30 1554 = 15893
| assels | !
iLL_urrcnl Assels
lia) Inventorics 219,51 -] 21951 | 3336 | 3.5 |
by Financial assets |
{i) Trade recenvabley| 244,53 - 24453 -
fii} Cash anil cash 40.15 - 40.15 MTT " 3677
crpuivalents —
i} Cther hinancial (L63 - .64 043 - 043
i Iz's.\cL'i
. Me (3her 1axg assels (Net) . . 14.50 . L4500
Oher curren! assels 11112 3353 i | 34,53
1027.80 702 AR 076 | 703.24 |




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

* Notes o the financial statements for the year ended 31 Marsch, 2018

- [Rs. in Lakhs)
' Exuity -
Equity Share Capital 2450 2450 2450 - ] 2450 |
Crther equity efer Note below 52454 52534 404 91 (.56 [ 16547 |
Liabulities
Non Current Lizbilities
[} Deferred tax hE- B 16.21 1621 £1.6% (1% 215
lahilities (Ner)
Current Liabilides
(a1 Fimancid Liahilitics
(1) Borrowings 1H5.54 B 0.00 {1,0H1
(1) Trade payables
| Tites, of miero and N T .
small enterprises
Lues other than 15234 15244 17543 17544
micro andd senall
lenserprises
{h) Cither current 1.37 A7 L33 1.13
liabilitees
™ e Prowisems 1538 1538 1,27 127
{d) Current G B9l Aus 1361 13.61
liahilities (Net) |
Total Eguiry and Liahilites | 1 (027 80 10T HO TO248H 1176 T3 4
Stutement of Reconeiliation of Equity (Shareholders’ funds) as at 31st March, 2017 and 15t April 2016
Particulars “Note No. As at A1st Asal 1st
March, 2017 april, 2016
Towl Fguity (Sherehoblers’ Fund) as per [GAAP SAE.04 | 8941
-@Mrnm[;nmtliﬂn 1o Ined AS: !
Fasr valuation of nvesnents i 75
Tax effees of adjustments FE& AL - (0.15)]
ol adjustments - | .56
| Total Bowary (Shareholders' Fund) as per IND AS 548,04 | 189.97
Effeets of Ind AS adoption on Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2017
Note No, Vear ended 31st March, 2617 {End of last period

i Particulars

presented as per [GAAF)

Asper IGAAP | Adjustroenis on | AS As per Ind

transition Lo [nd AS |

Revenue from rperationg 4 1,806, 19 25U 1838 7H :
[ither incuine 2 16:80 0.76) 15,04
Total Revenue 182299 3183 1.554.82
st of Maerals Lonsumed 161582 161542
Purciiase for sieek in trade 55 00 5560
Chianges i iventones of Finished Gords, Work-in-Progress and Stock-n-Trade (153.90) : {15390
Excise Dty an sales of grody i - 325 F2.5%
IEph'l}'ﬂ.‘ henefil expenses 5 67 (¥ I G747
[ Finance Cosis 623 - h23
| Depreviation & smorlzalion cxpeusts 27 .66 i - 706

[Othe: Dxpenses = 12257 | - 12257 |
Total Expenscs 1,740.88 3322 1774.00
[Brafit before exceptional ilems & tax B2.11 (1.3% BT

. Exceptional llems :

Profit before tax 82.11 (1.39) BO.TS |
Less Income Tax Expenses - -

* [“Current Tay 801 . M0
(-Deferred Tax s N, &8 {5:42) (13,46 {3.78)
' /. 33-:/ N\ 58,62 (1.03) 5760

= e | . 047 47
\5 * 5562 (0.56) 58.07 |
b \% S
4




TRICCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

" Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March, 2018

“a | B don Lakbs|

L. Statement of Heconclliation of total comprehensive income for the vear ended 318t March 2017
Particulars Note No. As an 3lst

March, 2017

Net Profit after Tax previously presented under [GANP SHA2
Al justments on transition o fnd AS {104y
Net Profit afier Tax belore OCL as per IND AS 57,59
| Reclassification of remeasurement of empluvee benefits 5 (1,63
Tix effects of adjustments %181 (0.16)
Total adjustments 047
Total Equity (Sharehalders' Fund) as per IND A5 S8.07

Effects of Ind AS adoption on Cash Flow statement for the year ended 315t March, 2017

Purticulars Nole Na. Year ended 315t March, 2017 (End of [ast period
preseated as per [GAAR)
As per [GAAY justments on | AS As per [nd
Lransiton (o AS
IndAS
Cash [low from operations (648 1) (98 16)
Cash Now from [nvesung Activities ATL28 AT1.28
(zash low from Financing Activitics 180 26 IB0.26
Net [ncrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3.38 | 138
Cash and cash equivalents st the beginning of the year 377 3677,
| Casht aml cush equividents at the end of the year H1.15 40115
Note No
1 Property, Plant and Equipment and [nvestment Froperty
Under the previous GAAP, lnvestment Property, Land & Bulding of Hs. 941 lakhs (1 April, 2016 Hs, 989 lakhs} was grouped under Propenty Flant and
| Eepipment. Under Ind A%, the same is treated 25 Investment property under Ind AS 41 ol carrying cost under previous GAAP. There 15 no impact en the (ol
| crjuity wnd prodic
! - Investments )
' Under the previous GAAR, invesiments in mutdal funds were dassifted as long-tenn investments of curcenl investiments bused on the intended hobding
| pericdd and pealisahility. Long-term investments were carried at cost less provision for other than emporary decline in the value of such investments, Under
I Imd A5, these investments are required 1o be measured at fair value. The resulting fair value changes of these investments have been recognised in retained
‘ carnings s at the date of transson and subsequentdy in the profit or loss {or the vear ended 31 March 2017 This increased the retasned carnings by Ks. 4076
lakhs as at 41 March 2017 (1 Aprd 2006 - Bs, 0076 lakhs)
[ 3 Deferred Tax
Under previous GAAF. deferred taxes were recognised based on Profit & loss approach e tax impact on difference between the aceounting income and
taxable income under Ind A%, deferred ax is recognised by [ollowing balence sheet approach fe, ax onpact on temporiry difference between the carrying
value of assets and labilities in the books and their respective 1ax base
i 4 Revenue from operations

Unider the previous GAAP, revenue from sale of products was presented exclusive of excse duty. Under Inid A%, revenue from sale of goods is presented
inclusive of excise duty. The exeise duty paid is presensed on the face of the statement of profit and foss as part of expenses. This change has resulted inoan
increase in total revenue snd tomal expenses for the yeas ended 31 March 2007 by Rs 32,58 lakhs. There s no impact on the todal equity and proit,

b Hemzasurements of post-emplovment benefit obligations

Under lnd AS, remeasurements de. actuarial gans and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding smounts inchuded in the per inlerest expense vn the
| et defined benefil liability are recognised in other comprehenseve income instead of profit or luss. Under the previows GAAP. these remeasurements were
forming part of the profit or loss for the vear As a result of this change, the profit for the year endsd 31 March 2017 decreased by Rs0.63 takhs (1 Apeil 2016
R 110 lakhs) There i no impact on the total equity

45 Farr Yalue measurement-

The fair value of Financial instrument as of March 37,2018 March 31,2007 and Apeil 12016 were as foflows-

Particulars March 31,2018 | March 31,2017 April 12010 Fairvalue | Valuation
¢ Hirarchy Technlgue
Amsels-
i Investment in Mutial Fusids theough PVTPL A04. 24 |Leved-1 | Lpapuanated,
Market Price

369.24




1 TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
7 Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March. 2018
. |Ka. in Lakhs|

«  The management sisessed that Cash and Cash equivalents, foans. other halances with Hanks, trade receivables, trade payabies and other current labilities/usscts
appronitnate their carrving amounts largely due 1o the short-tcrm maturitics of these instruments

i6 Scgmeni Reporting

The Company o cagaged pnmaniy m the business of manufaciunng and export of pharmaceuticals produets, APl and chemicals. All other actvities of the company
revodve around the main business and hence there 15 oo repontable premary segment, Also the Company does ot have any reponable geographical segment. Henee,
disclomures pussuant 1o the [ndian Accounting $tandard 108 "Operating Segment” are not applicable

4T The previeus vear figures have been regrouped redlassified, wherever necessary 1o conform o the cusrent presentation as per the schedule (1] of Companies Aot 2013

As per out report of even date attached, ;
For Kanu Doshi Assoclates LLP For and on behall of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants J
Firm Registration Moo 0047400 W 100096 WMM n‘El:ﬂ'l &ﬂ‘rﬁ""’
. Mahabirprasad 5. Deora Puran Farmar
Q\}L 0\1)" Director (DIN: 01073326) Chief Financial Officer )
3 . - - = pllne
Aratf Parmar Jr e ‘fﬁ“ {'tf d_lf_ff{‘_'
Partner ‘Ramu %Beors - B Grangani
s ombership No 102888 Director (DIN: 00312369) Company Secretary
e Mumba

Dated: 29th May, 2014
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i Form No. SH-13
| Nomination Form
[Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(1) of the Companies
| (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014)
To
Triochem Products Limited
4* Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P M. Road, Fort, Mumbai 400 001

I'We the holder(s) of the securities, particulars of which are given
hereunder, which 1o make nomination and do hereby nominate the following persons in whom shall vest, all the

rights in respect of such securities in the vent of my/our death.
(1) PARTICUALRS OF THE SECURITITES (in respect of which nomination is being made):
Nature of secunities | Folio No. No. of securities Centficate No Distinctive No.

(2) PARTICUALRS OF NOMINEES.

{a) Name:

(by Date of Birth:

(¢) Father's /Mother's / Spouse’s name;

(d) Occupation:

(¢) Nationality:

(1) Address:

(g) L-mail Id. & Telephone No.:

(h) Relationship with the security holder(s):
{3 IN CASE OF NOMINEE IS A MONIR-

{a) Date of birth:

(b} Date of attaining majority;

(c) Name of guardian:
{d) Address of guardian:
(4] PARTICULARS OF NOMINEE IN CSE MINIR NIMINEE DIES BEFORE ATTAINING AGE OF MAJORITY-
{a) Name:
by Date of Birth
{c) Father's Mother's / Spouse’s name

{dy Occupation:

(e) Nationality:

() Address:

(g) E-mail Id. & Telephone No.:

(hy Relationship with the security holder(s):
(i) Relationship with the minor nominee:

Name(s) and Address of Sccunty holder(s) Signature(s)

Name and Address of Witness Signature

29




Form No. SH-14
Cancellation or Variation of Nomination
[Pursuant to Sub-Section 3 of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(9) of the Companies
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014]
To
Triochem Products Limited
4" Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P, M. Road, Fort, Mumbai 400 001

I/We hereby cancel the nomination(s) made by me/us in favour of
(name(s) and address of the nominee) in respect of the below mentioned securities.

Or
I'We hereby nominate the following person in place of as
nominee in respect of the below mentioned securities in whom shall vest all rights in respect of such securities in

the event of my / our death,
(1) PARTICUALRS OF THE SECURITITES (in respect of which nomination is being made):

Folio No. | N-CI. of securities | Certificate No. | Distinctive No.
: : | : |
(2) PARTICUALRS OF NOMINEES- ) | -
{a) Name:
(h) Date of Birth:
{c) Father's / Mother's / Spouse’s name:
{d) Occupation:
{e) Nationality:
(f) _Mid:ess:
{g) E-mail Id. & Telephone No:
(h) Relationship with the security holder(s):
(3} IN CASE OF NOMINEE IS A MONIR-
{a) Date of birth:
{b) Datc of attaining majority:

Nature of securities

{c) Name of guardian:
(d) Address of guardian:
(4) PARTICULARS OF NOMINEE IN CSE MINIR NIMINEE DIES BEFORE ATTAINING AGE OF MAJORITY-
(a) Name,
(b) Date of Birth:
(c) Father's Mother's /Spouse's name:
{d) Occupation
(e} Nationality,
(f) Address:
(g) E-mail Id. & Telephone No.;
(h) Relatuonship with the sceurity holder(s):
(i) Relationship with the minor nominee:
Name(s) and Address of Securnity holder(s) Signature(s)

Name and Adidress of Witness Signature




Te,

M/s. Sharex Dynamic (India) Pyt Lid

Unit: Triochem Products Limited

Unit-1, Luthra Industrial Premises, Safed Pool,

Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400072
Phone: + 91 - 22 - 28515606, Fax: + 91 - 22 - 28512885
E-mail: sharexindia(et vsnl.com, www _sharexindia.com

Updating of Shareholder Information

I'We request you to record the following information against our Folio No.:

General Information;

[ Folio No.:
Name of the first named Sharcholder-

I_PM_'I N

| CIN/Registration No. *
(applicable to Corporate Shareholder)
Telephone No, with STD Code :
Maobile No.:

’Tm.ﬂl 1dl: l

*Self-attested copy of the documu;m{s} enclosed
Bank Details:
IFSC; (11 dight)
MICR: (9 digit)
Bank Account Type:
Bank Account No:*

r_N:m'n: of the Hank:
Bank Branch Address:

:'ﬁ blank cancelled cheque is enclosed to enable verification of bank details
I'We hereby declare that the particulars given above are correct and complete. If the transaction is delayed because
of incomplete or incorrect information, | We would not hold the Company / RTA responsible. | We undertake 10
inform any subsequent changes in the above particulars as and when the changes take place. | We understand that

the above details shall be maintained by vou till 'We hold the securities under the above mentioned Folio No.

Place:
Signature of Sole/ First holder

Date:

a1




Trinchem Products Limited

CIN: L.24249MH1972PLCO15544
Registered Office: 4" Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001
Phone: 022 22663150, E-mail: investor@triochemproducts.com, Website: www.triochemproducts.com
Form No.: MGT - 11

PROXY FORM
(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and

Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

Regd. Folio No. *DPID
"No. of Shares held | *DF ID
| / We, being the member(s) of Shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint:

1. Name & Address:

Email Id: Signature or failing him / her

2), Name & Address,

Email 1d: Signature or failing him / her

33, Name & Address

Email Id: Signature or failing him / her

and whose signature are appended below as my / our proxy to attend and vote for me | us and on my / our behalf
at the 46" Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Saturday, the 25% day of August, 2018 at 03.00
p.m. at 4 Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001 and at any adjournment thereof in
respect of such resolution as are indicated below:

Sl No. of Resolution (as in the Notice annexed)

1 ] 2 3 | 4 | s |
(Tick Mark the 81, No. of Resolution of Which the Proxy is appointed)

Signed this day of 2018

Member's Folio/DP ID<Client 1D No.

Signature of Shareholder(s)

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Affix Revenue Stamp

Q2



Triochem Products Limited
CIN: L24249MH1972PLCO15544
Registered Office: 4" Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P. M, Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001
Phone: 0122 22663150, E-muil: investor@ tricchemproducts.com, Website: www triochemproducts.com

BALLOT FORM

I Sr No Particulars - - Details

|| Name and Registered Address of the
| Sole/First named Shareholder

L. I Name(s) of the Joint Holder(s) (if any)

4| Registered Folio No./
DI ID Mo and Client 1D No.

i Number of Share(s) held

| We hereby exercise my [ our vote(s) in respect of the Resolutions set out in the Notice of the Forty 5ix Annual
General Meeting (AGM) of the Company to be held on Saturday, August 25, 2018, by sending my / our assent or

dissent to the said Resolution by placing the tick (Y) mark at the appropriate box below;

ltem Resolution [ No.of | (FOR) | (AGAINST)
No Shares 1/ We [/ We
assent 1o | dissent
from the
rmulutmn | n,h-utuuun |

Hoard of Directors and Auditors for the financial vear ended 31"

I Adoption of Statement of Profit & Loss, Balance Sheet, Report of 1|
March, 2018 '

2 Re-appointment of Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora as a Director,

3 Appointment of M/s KANL DOSHI ASSOCIATED LLP, Chartered
Aceountant as Statutory Auditors of the Company and fixing their

remuneration,

4 Ratification of Remuneration payable to cost auditors

L)

' Authorization for related party transaction us 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013

Place:

Diate: (Signature of the Shareholder)

Sote Please tead the instructions printed below carefully before exercising your vole

[nstruction

| The Hallot Form is provided for the benefit of the Members who do not have access to e-voting facility.

2 A Member can opt for only one mode of voting i.¢. either through e-voting or by Ballot. If a Member casts

votes by both modes, then voting done through e-voting shall prevail and Ballot shall be treated as invalid.

a3



3
.

For detailed instruction on e-voting, please refer to the notes appended to the Notice of the AGM
The Serutinizer will collate the votes downloaded from the e-voting system and votes received through post 1o

declare the final result for each of the Resolution forming part of the Notice of the AGM,

Process and manner for Member opling to vote by using the Ballot Form

Jis

IJI

Please complete and sign the Ballot Form (no other form or photo copy thereof is permitted) and send it so as
to reach the Scrutinizer appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, Mrs. Rigini Chokshi, Practicing
Company Secretary (Membership No.: FCS1430) at the office of Company's Registrar & Transfer Agent.

The Form should be signed by the Member as per the Specimen signature registered with the
Company Depositories. In case of joint holding, the Form should be completed and singed by the first named
Member and in his her absence, by the next named joint holder. A power of Attorney (POA) holder may vote
on behall of a member, mentioning the registration number of the POA registered with the Company or
enclosing an attested copy of the POA. Exercise of vote by Ballots not permitted through proxy.

In case the shares are held by companies, trusts, societies, ctc. the duly completed Ballot Form should be
accompanied by a certified true copy of the relevant Board Resolution/Authonization.

Votes should be cast in case of each resolution, either in favour or against by putting the tick (Y) marks in the
column provided in the Ballot

The voting rights of sharcholders shall be in proportion of the share held by them in the paid up equity share
capital of the company as on 17" August, 2018 and as per the Register of Members of the Company.

Duly completed Ballot Form should reach the Scrutinizer not later than Fnday, August 24, 2018 (05.00 p.m
IST). Ballot Form received after August 24, 2018 will be strictly treated as if the reply form the Members has
not been received

A Member may request for a duplicate Ballot Form, if so required. However, duly filled in and signed
duplicate Form should reach the Serutinizer not later than the date and ume specilied in serial no 6 above.
Unsigned, incomplete, improperly or incorrectly tick marked Ballot Forms will be rejected. A Form will also
be rejected if it is received torn, defaced or mutilated to an extent which makes it difficult for the Scrutinizer
to identify either the Member or as to whether the votes are in favour or against or if the signature cannot be

verified.

The decision of the Scrutinizer on the validity of the Ballot Form and any other related matter shall be final.

1. The Results on above resolutions shall be declared not later than 458 hours from the conclusion of the AGM of

the Company and the resolutions will be deemed 1o be passed on the AGM date subject to receipt of the

requisite number of votes in favour of the Resolutions.

11, The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report(s) will be available on the website of the Company

{(www triochemproducts com) and on Service Provider's website {(www cdslindin.com) and communication of

¢ 1o the BSE Limited within 48 hours from the conclusion of the AGM

Th



. Triochem Products Limited
CIN: L24249MH1972PLCO15544
Registered Office: 4" Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001
Phone: (122 22663150, E-mail: investor{@triochemproducts.com , Website: www.triochemproducts.com
Form No.: MGT - 12
Polling Paper
(Pursuant to Section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 21(1)(c) of the Companies (Management and

Administration) Rules, 2014)

- Name of the Company: Triochem Products Limited
! Registered Office: 4 Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir . M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001
| CIN: L24249MH1972PLCO15544

BALLOT PAPER
Sr. No. Particulars . Details
1. | Name of the First named Shareholder (In Block
Letlers)
z | Postal address

|
3 Registered Folio No, |/ *Client 1D No. (*applicable to
investors holding shares in dematerialized form)

4. | Class of Share Equity Shares

I hereby exercise my vote in respect ol Ordinary | Special Resolutions enumerated below by recording my assent or
dissent to the said resolution in the following manner;

Moo ltem No No, of Shares | assent to the | | dissent from
heldbyme  resolution the resolution
1l | Adoption of Statement of Profit and Loss, Balance Sheet, -
Report of Board of Directors and Auditors for the year ended

| March 31, 2018

| Re-appointment of Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora as a Director, .
3. Appointment of Ms KANU DOSHI ASSOCIATED LLP,
Chartered Accountant as Statutory Auditors of the Company

and lixing their remuneration.

1. Ratification of Remuneration payable to cost auditors

5. Authorization for related party transaction u/s 188 of the

- Companies Act, 2013 I

Flace:
Date: (Signature of the Shareholder*)

(*as per ﬂUFHPHH_]FEt;:{I['{"F-]
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=== Triochem Products Limited

CIN: L24249MH1972PLCO15544
Registered Office: 4" Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001
Phone: 022 22663150, E-mail: investor@triochemproducts.com , Website: www triochemproducts.com
ATTENDANCE SLIP

Name of the Attending Member(s)
*Folio No.:
" DPID No.:

Client 1D No.:
|

No. of Shares -

I hereby record my presence at the 46 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company held at 4° Floor, |

Sambava Chambers, Sir P.M, Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001, at 03.00 p.m. on Saturday, the 25" August, 2018,
- Name of the attending Sharcholder Proxy |

—

_-éi.gn:lturt of the attending

Shareholder/Proxy |

Notes;
< 1) A Member / Proxyholder attending the meeting must bring the Atendance Slip to the meeting and

hand it over at the entrance duly signed.
2) A Member / Proxyholder attending the meeting should bring copy of the Annual Report for reference

at the meeting
*Applicable in case of share held in Physical Form

Cul Here

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICUALRS

EVSN User 1D (PAN / Sequence Number) |
(Electronic Voting Sequence Number) ‘ :|

NOTE: Please read the complete instructions given under the Note (The instructions for shareholders voting
electronically) to the Notice of Annual General Meeting, The Voting time starts from August 22, 2018 from 09.00

am. to ends on August 24, 2018 at 05.00 p.m. The voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter
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